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VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
CIN No: L80301MH1984PLC033922

Registered Office: Witty International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West,
Mumbai – 400 064.

Tel.: 022-61056800 / 01 / 02 Fax: 022-61056803 Email: vjtfho@vjtf.com
Website: www.vjtf.com / www.wittykidsindia.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting of VJTF Eduservices Limited will be
held at Ground Floor, Witty International School, Padma Nagar, Next to Garden Grove Complex,
Opposite Mhada Layout, Phase 1, Chikoowadi, Borivali West, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400092 on
Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 02:00 P.M., to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider, and adopt:

1. Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; and

2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st

March, 2022.

3. To appoint M/s Nimesh Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual General
Meeting and to fix their remuneration:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as may be applicable and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee,
M/s. Nimesh Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117425W), be
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company, subject to approval of shareholders, in place of
retiring auditor M/s J. Kala & Associates (Firm Registration No. 118769W), to hold office from the
conclusion of this 37th AGM until the conclusion of the 42nd AGM held in the FY 2026-27, subject
to ratification by members every year, as applicable, at such remuneration and out of pocket
expenses, as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Special Business:

4. Approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the subsidiary company M/s VJTF
Buildcon Private Limited:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with The Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), if any, consent of the shareholders of the Company be
and is hereby accorded to (a) give any loan to any person(s) or other body corporate(s) ; (b) give any
guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any person(s) or other body corporate(s) ;
and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of any other body corporate
from time to time in one or more tranches as the Board of Directors as in their absolute discretion
deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company, for an amount not exceeding Rs.500 Crore
(Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only) outstanding at any time, notwithstanding that such investments,
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outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in excess of the
limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for its subsidiary company i.e. M/s
VJTF Buildcon Private Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, Executive Directors
and Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised to take such steps as
may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory or otherwise, in relation to the above and to all
matters arising out of and incidental thereto and to sign and to execute deeds, applications,
documents and file returns with Registrar of Companies, that may be required, on behalf of the
Company and generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper,
expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”

5. Approval under Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the subsidiary company M/s VJTF
Buildcon Private Limited:

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereto including any
statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, the consent of the shareholders of the Company be
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company of the listed company to
borrow money, as and when required, from, including without limitation, any Bank and/ or other
Financial Institution and/or foreign lender and/or anybody corporate/ entity/ entities and/or
authority/authorities, either in rupees or in such other foreign currencies as may be permitted by law
from time to time, as may be deemed appropriate by the Board for an aggregate amount not
exceeding a sum of Rs.500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only), notwithstanding that money
so borrowed together with the monies already borrowed by the Company, if any (apart from
temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may
exceed the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of the Company and its free reserves of VJTF
Buildcon Private Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereto including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof, consent of the shareholders of the company be and is hereby
accorded, to the Board of Directors of the Subsidiary Company to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate
and/or charge all or any part of the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and the
whole or part of the undertaking of the Company of every nature and kind whatsoever and/or
creating a floating charge in all or any movable or immovable properties of the Company and the
whole of the undertaking of the Company to or in favour of banks, financial institutions, investors
and any other lenders to secure the amount borrowed by the Company or any third party from time to
time for the due payment of the principal and/or together with interest, charges, costs, expenses and
all other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of such borrowings provided
that the aggregate indebtedness secured by the assets of the Company does not exceed a sum of Rs.
500 Crore (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to take such
steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation to
the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and to execute
deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and
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generally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, expedient or
incidental for giving effect to this resolution.”

6. Ratification/ Approval of Related Party Transactions:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 (Listing Regulations) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Listing Regulations, Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder,
including statutory modification(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force and as may be
notified from time to time, consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the company to enter into contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with
parties as detailed in the table forming part of the Explanatory Statement annexed to this notice with
respect to Sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials, leasing of property of any kind, availing or
rendering of any services, appointment of agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or
property or appointment of such parties to any office or place of profit in the company or any other
transactions of whatever nature, at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business,
notwithstanding that such transactions may exceed 10% of the Consolidated Turnover of the
Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Listing
Regulations from time to time, up to such extent and on such terms and conditions as specified in the
table forming part of the Explanatory Statement annexed to this notice.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the members hereby ratify the material related party transactions
between the Company and its related Companies and trust, for the financial years 2020-21 & 2021-
22, at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, under the existing related party
arrangement as detailed in the Explanatory Statement to this Notice.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the terms and conditions of the transactions with the Related
Parties shall be approved by the Audit & Risk Management Committee.”

By Order of the Board
For VJTF Eduservices Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain

Managing Director Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00235276) (DIN: 01142103)

Dated: 06/09/2022
Place: Mumbai
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NOTES:

• The Register of Members will be closed from 24th September, 2022 to 30th September, 2022 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting.

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on his behalf
and such proxy / proxies need not be a member of the Company. Person can act as proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company.

2. Proxy forms in order to be effective must be received at Registered Office of the Company situated at Witty
International School, Pawan Baug Road, Malad West, Mumbai - 400064, 48 hours before the Annual General
Meeting.

3. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with
the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the
business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the
Company.

4. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Report and Accounts to the Meeting.

5. Members who hold shares in the Dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers
for easy identification of attendance at the 37th Annual General Meeting. Also, they are required to intimate all
changes pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch details, MICR
code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail
address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be
automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents, Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd to provide efficient and better services. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to the RTA.

6. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

7. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 37th AGM is annexed to the Annual Report.

8. A copy of all the documents referred to in the accompanying explanatory statement are open to inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days except public holidays between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up
to the date of AGM.

9. Members are requested to affix their signatures at the space provided on the Attendance Slip annexed to the Proxy
Form and hand over the Slip at the entrance to the place of the Meeting.

10. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly certified copy
of the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM.

11. The Company has made necessary arrangements for the Members to hold their shares in dematerialized form.
Those members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize the same by approaching
any of the Depository Participants (DPs). In case any member wishes to dematerialize his/her shares and needs
any assistance, he/she may write to the Director at the registered office of the Company.

12. Copies of Annual Report 2022 are being sent to the members in the permitted mode.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants(s). Members holding shares in physical
form shall submit their PAN details to the Company / RTA.

14. Mr. Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 11346) an
Independent Professional has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the E-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner (including the Ballot Form received from the members who do not have access to the e-voting
process) in a fair and transparent manner.
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15. The Results of E-voting shall be declared at the AGM of the Company and the results along with Scrutinizer’s
report shall be placed on the website of the Company thereafter and shall also be communicated to the Stock
Exchanges. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed, if approved, on or before the date of 30th September,
2022.

16. Important Communication to Members-Green Initiative in Corporate Governance:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a Green Initiative in Corporate Governance by allowing paperless
compliances by the companies and has issued a Circular stating that service of all documents can be sent by e-mail to its
members. Our Company believes that this is a remarkable and environment friendly initiative by MCA and requests all
members to support in this noble cause.

The Company has already embarked on this initiative and proposes to send documents in electronic form to the Members
on the email address provided by them to the RTA/Depositories.

The Members who hold shares in physical from are requested to intimate/update their email address to the Company /
RTA while Members holding shares in demat form can intimate / update their email address to their respective
Depository Participants.

Members are requested to further note that they will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, the physical copy of the
documents sent by e-mail, upon receipt of a requisition from them, any time, as a Member of the Company.

17. PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING:

CDSL e-Voting System – For Remote e-voting

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat
mode.

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, 27th September, 2022 at 09:00 AM and ends on Thursday, 29th

September, 2022 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd September, 2022 may cast
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-
voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites
of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in
demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option
for eligible companieswhere the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting
Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com
home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting optionwhere the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738
and 22-23058542-43.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in
Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend
Bank Details
OR Date of
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided
that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.
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(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO”
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User

would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.

together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the

Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; manoj@wittykidsindia.com, if they have voted from

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For De-mat shareholders - please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant
(DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.
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All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or call on 022-23058542/43.

By Order of the Board
For VJTF Eduservices Limited

Place: Mumbai Sd/- Sd/-
Dated: 06/09/2022 Dr. Vinay Jain Dr. Raina Jain

Managing Director Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00235276) (DIN: 01142103)

12



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3 Though not mandatory, this statement is provided for understanding.

M/s J. Kala & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 118769W) were appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for two-consecutive term of Five years each till the conclusion
of Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company scheduled in 2022. Second
proviso to Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for the appointment of a new Auditor
when the existing Auditor’s Firm has completed two consecutive term of five years each. Accordingly,
as per the said requirements of the Act, M/s Nimesh Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai (Firm Reg. No. 117425W) is proposed to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, subject to approval of shareholders, for a period of 5 years, commencing from the
conclusion of 37th AGM till the conclusion of the 42nd AGM to be held in the year 2027.

M/s Nimesh Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, has consented to the said appointment and
confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified under Section
141(3)(g) of the Act. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as
Statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and
Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Memorandum of interest

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise in the Resolution set out at item No. 3 of the notice.

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 to be passed as an Ordinary Resolution.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item NO. 4

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Subsidiary Company of the listed company
and also to achieve long term strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company
proposes to make use of the same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans,
giving guarantee or providing security to other persons or other body corporate as and when required.

Members may note that pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Company
can give loan or give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body
corporate or person and acquire securities of any other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up
share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100% of its free reserves and securities
premium account, whichever is more, with approval of Members by special resolution passed at the
general meeting.

In view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013, by way of special resolution, up to a limit of Rs. 500 Crores, as proposed in the Notice.

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set
out at Item No. 4 for approval by the members of the Company.
The Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are the directors and KMP in the subsidiary company so
directors are concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution at Item no. 4 of the
accompanying notice.

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 to be passed as Special Resolution.

13



Item No 5

Keeping in view the Subsidiary Company’s long term strategic and business objectives, the Company
may need additional funds. For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from
various Banks and/or Financial Institutions and/ or any other lending institutions and/or Bodies
Corporate and/or such other persons/ individuals as may be considered fit, which, together with the
moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
bankers in ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital and free
reserves of the Company. Pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors cannot borrow more than the aggregate amount of the paid-up capital of the Company and
its free reserves at any one time except with the consent of the members of the Company in a general
meeting. In order to facilitate securing the borrowing made by the Company, it would be necessary to
create charge on the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company. Further, Section
180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the
whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company subject to the approval of
members in the General Meeting.

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set
out at Item No.5 for approval by the members of the Company.

The Directors or Key Managerial Personnel are the directors and KMP in the subsidiary company so
directors are concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution at Item no. 5 of the
accompanying notice.

The Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 5 to be passed as Special Resolution.

Item No. 6

The Company in its ordinary course of business and/or on arm's length basis sources for running
schools in different location in India. Given that VJTF Buildcon Pvt. Ltd, VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Pvt. Ltd, VJTF Construction Pvt. Ltd, Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust, Witty Global
Education Trust, Witty Education Pvt. Ltd., Witty Infratech Private Limited, Dr. Raina Jain and Dr.
Vinay Jain all companies and trust either subsidiary company or associates company or trust with
same management. The Operational and Management Fees Income, Income collected on our behalf
by, Lease rent expenses, Director’s remuneration, Security cum Guarantee Given, Security cum
Guarantee taken, Payable to associates, Investment in Shares of an subsidiary and associate, Other
Current Liability, Reimbursement of expenses given, Loan given, Loan given received back, Payment
made on behalf of, Payment made on behalf of received back, Payment received on behalf of,
Payments received on behalf of – repaid from these companies is dependent on the requirement of the
Company for its requirement from time to time. During the course of its business the Company also
sells its products to these companies / trust:

Name of the Related Party Name of the Director / KMP who is related and
nature of their relationship

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private
Limited

Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested
Company is the subsidiary company and Dr. Vinay
Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the director in the
company so directors are Interested
Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
trustee in the Trust so Directors are Interested
Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
trustee in the Trust so Directors are Interested
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Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested
Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested

VJTF Construction Private Limited Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested
Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested
Dr. Vinay Jain and Dr. Raina Jain, both are the
director in the company so directors are Interested
Director herself
Director himself

Transactions during the year with the value more than 10% of the turnover (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Subsidiary Associate /
Others

Key
Management

Personnel
Subsidiary Associate

/ Others

Key
Management

Personnel

Interest Expenses

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - - - - 89.31 -

Director's Remuneration
Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00

Dr.Raina Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00

Loans Given

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited - 880.86 - - 5.68 -

Loans Given Received Back

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited - - - 809.70 - -

Operation & Managment
Deposits Received Back 1,400.14

Lease Deposit Received Back

Witty Global Education Trust - 449.19 - - - -
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Payments made on behalf of:
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable
Trust - - - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 159.28 -

Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09

Payments made on behalf of -
received back:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable
Trust - - - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 159.28 -

Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09 -

Payments received on behalf of:
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable
Trust - 2,666.94 - - 1,613.16 -

Witty Education Private Limited - 112.29 - - 352.97 -

Witty Global Education Trust - 981.93 - - 33.04 -

Payments received on behalf of -
repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable
Trust - 2,855.57 - - 1,517.84 -

Witty Education Private Limited - 112.29 - - 970.70 -

Witty Global Education Trust - 986.35 - - 28.63 -

VJTF Infraschool Services
(Udaipur) Private Limited - 242.05 - - 8.32 -

Security cum Guarantee Given

Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited - - - - 1,100.00 -
VJTF Infraschool Services
(Mumbai) Private Limited - - - - 1,000.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
- - - - - 500.00

Material terms of the transactions include the:

1) All the transactions were on continuing basis and were undertaken on arm’s length basis and in the
ordinary course of business.
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Any other information relevant or important for the Members to take decision on the proposed
resolution: None

In view of compliance with Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, approval of members for the above Related Party Transactions is being sought by
way of Ordinary Resolution. The proposal outlined above will contribute to continuous growth &
profits of your Company and is in the interest of the Company. Hence, the Audit & Risk Management
Committee / Board recommends the resolution set out in the Item as an Ordinary resolution. None of
the Related Parties shall vote in the resolution. None of Director, key managerial personnel and their
relatives, is concerned or interested in the said resolution except to the extent of their directorship and
shareholding in the Company.
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PARTICULARS Standalone
for the year
ended 31st

March, 2022

Standalone for
the Year ended
31st March,
2021

Consolidated
for the year
ended 31st

March, 2022

Consolidated for
the Year ended
31st March, 2021

Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income
Total Expenses

Less: Finance Cost
Less: Depreciation
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

Prior Period Taxation
Adjustments

(9.98)

Deferred Tax
Profit/(Loss) after Tax for
the year
Other comprehensive
income/(loss)
Total Other Comprehensive
Income/(Loss) for the year
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2022

Annexure 2
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. VJTF Eduservices Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s VJTF Eduservices Limited (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the M/S VJTF Eduservices Limited’s books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I, hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the F inancial Year ended on31st March 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by VJTF Eduservices Ltd (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022,
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares And Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable during the audit
period

(b) The   Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Prohibition   of   Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
Client; Not Applicable during the audit period

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable during the audit period

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
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(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable
during the audit period

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits)
Regulation, 2014; Not Applicable during the audit period

(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009- Not Applicable during the audit period

(h)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 notified on 11th September, 2018- Not Applicable during the
audit period

(Vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company, as detailed below;

Company has been surrender its NBFC license due to no business in the company
since 2013 with the Reserve Bank of India under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are
applicable to the Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) and the said application
of licence surrender is in process with RBI. No order or remark yet received by the
company as on March 31, 2022.

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems
and mechanisms formed by the Company for compliances under the other applicable Acts,
Laws and Regulations as mentioned by the Company in its Management Representation
letter.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii) Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015 entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following specific observations:

1. As per the information provided by the management this year, status of the Company is
NBFC (Non-Banking Financial Company). Further, the management informed us that they
are already submit the application with RBI to surrender of NBFC licence.

I further report that

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
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obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c) As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions of
the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the year under report, the Company has not undertaken
event/action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. referred to above.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure- A and
forms an integral part of this Report.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29/08/2022

For R S Rajpurohit & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-
FCS Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit
FCS No. 11346      C P No.: 15891

UDIN: F011346D000870457
Peer Review No: S2016MH364200
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To, ‘Annexure 2’
The Members,
M/s. VJTF Eduservices Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company; my responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
Records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company. The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial
laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the
same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals.

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29/08/2022

For R S Rajpurohit & Co.,
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-
FCS Rajvirendra Singh Rajpurohit

FCS No. 11346 C P No.: 15891
UDIN: F011346D000870457

Peer Review No: S2016MH364200
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     INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Members of  
M/s. VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of  VJTF EDUSERVICES 
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the Standalone 
Financial Statements”). 

 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

 
Basis for opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 

Emphasis of Matters 
 

4. We draw Attention to Note 33 to the standalone financial statements, which describe the uncertainty 
caused by Novel Corona virus (COVID-19).  

5. We draw Attention to Note 45 to the standalone financial statements, relating to the legal dispute with 
Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI). 
 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 

6. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there 
are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon  

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report 
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

8. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

9. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  

10. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

 
Management’s responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

11. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act.  
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

12. In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

13. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements 

14. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

 

15. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
16. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

17. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in  
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

18. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

19. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

20. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

21. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.  

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 197 (16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 34 (a) and 45 to the financial statements. 

 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.  
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity,  including  foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),  with  the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any  guarantee,  security or the  
like on  behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no  funds 
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest  in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf  of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee,  security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  
 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

 

 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
Sd/- 
 

Milind Shah 
Partner 
Membership Number: 107119 
UDIN: 22107119AJYCFJ7276 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2022 
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i.  (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and relevant details 
of right-of-use assets. 

 
  (B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 
 
 (b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and 

equipment by which all assets are verified in a phased manner, over a period of three years, 
which in our opinion is reasonable, considering the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
 (c) According to the information and explanations received by us, the Company does not own any 

immovable properties. Therefore, in our opinion, the requirements on reporting under Clause 3 
(i) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.   

 
 (e) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 

assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 
 
 (f) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 

March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 
 

ii.    (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any 
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
       (b)  The Company does not have any working capital limits in excess of rupees five crore, in 

aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of security of 
current assets. Therefore, in our opinion, the requirements on reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) 
are not applicable to the Company. 

   
iii.  (a) In our opinion and according to the information provided to us the company has made 

investments and provided guarantees and granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of 
loans as specified below: 

 
(A) To Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associates: 

          (Rs.in Lacs) 
Name of Related Party Nature Aggregate amount 

during the year 
Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2022 

VJTF Infraschool Services 
(Mumbai) Private Limited   

Loans Given 880.86 1393.78 

Witty Enterprises Private Limited Security cum Guarantee Given - 10000.00 
Witty Infratech Private Limited Security cum Guarantee Given - 1100.00 
VJTF Infraschool Services 
(Mumbai) Private Limited     

Security cum Guarantee Given - 10357.35 

VJTF Infraschool Services 
(Udaipur) Private Limited      

Security cum Guarantee Given - 3060.00 

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited Investment - 313.70 
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VJTF Infraschool Services 
(Mumbai) Private Limited 
(Formerly VJTF Infrastructure 
Private Limited) 

Investment 
 

- 482.25 

 
(B) To other than Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates:  

(Rs.in Lacs) 
Name of Related Party Nature Aggregate amount 

during the year 
Balance outstanding 
as on 31.03.2022 

Dr Raina Jain Security cum Guarantee Given - 500.00 
  
(b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, 

guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the 
nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company 
except in case of unsecured loan given to one of the associate Company having outstanding balance 
amounting to Rs 1393.78 Lacs as at 31 March 2022, is prejudicial to the Company’s interest as no interest 
has been charged on such loan given to the entity, as explained, in view of pending legal disputes with 
Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) (Refer Note 45). 

(c)  In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the 
interest has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the 
repayments/receipts of principal and interest thereon are regular. 

(d)  In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest, we are unable to 
comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more than 90 days and whether reasonable 
steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal amounts and interest. 

(e)  In respect of loans and advances in the nature of unsecured loans granted by the Company, the schedule of 
repayment of principal has not been stipulated. Further, no interest is receivable on such loans and advances 
in the nature of loans. According to the information and explanation given to us, such loans have not been 
demanded for repayment as on date. 

(f)  The Company has granted unsecured loans which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms 
or period of repayment, as detailed at paragraph (a) above. 

 
iv.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in connection with any loan to any 
party covered under Section 185 of the Act except those mentioned in Note 37 of accompanying 
financial statements. In respect of loans granted and security cum guarantee given, the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Act have been complied with. However, the Company has not 
made any Investments during the year. 

  
v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are deemed to be deposits within 

the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act and the rules made thereunder. Accordingly the provisions of clause (v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
vi.       As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central 

Government under Section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the 
Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
 
 

70



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Referred to in Paragraph 20 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of VJTF 
Eduservices Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March 2022 
 
 
vii.  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory 
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and service tax 
(GST), cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, where applicable.  

 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of 
the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable.    

 
        (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues referred to in sub 

clause (a) have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 
                                                                      (Rs in lakhs) 

Name of 
Statute 

Nature of 
Disputed dues 

Amount under 
dispute  

Period to 
which amount 

relates 

Forum where 
dispute is  
pending 

Income  Tax 
Act,1961 

Income tax 38.60 FY 2016-17 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals)  

Income  Tax 
Act,1961 

Income tax 42.42 FY 2017-18 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals)  

Income  Tax 
Act,1961 

Income tax 100.61 FY 2018-19 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

 
  
viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered 

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. (43 
of 1961). 

 
ix. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in 
the payment of interest to any Lenders, except for minor delays. 
(b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
other lenders. 
(c)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

performed by us, the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained.  

(d)The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis except for bank overdraft which has 
been used for working capital. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(e)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

   (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, 
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) is 
not applicable to the Company. 
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x. (a) As the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year, the provisions of clause (x) (a) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.    
 
(b)As the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully, partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year, the provisions of Clause (x) 
(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xi. (a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the 

management, we report that neither fraud on the Company nor any fraud by the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

 
(b)No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT- 4 as prescribed under rule 11 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 
(c)No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company. 

 
 
xii.       As the Company is not a Nidhi company, the provisions of clause (xii) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 
and 188 of the Act, wherever applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements (Refer Note 37), as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

 
xiv.  (a)The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business.    
         (b)The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the 

period under audit have been considered by us.  
 

xv.    According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions covered 
under Section 192 of the Act with the directors or persons connected with him, the provisions of 
Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi. (a)The Company had applied vide its Letter dated 4th February. 2019 to the Reserve Bank of 

India for surrender of existing registration number 13.00998 dated 5th September, 1998 for 
which their confirmation / approval is still awaited (Refer Note no. 61). However, the Company 
is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from Reserve Bank of 
India as per Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
(c)Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulation made by the 
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Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(xvi)(c)  of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 
(d)In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year, however, had incurred cash losses 

of Rs 243.31 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year, hence 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that there is material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. 

 
xx. The provisions for contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not 

applicable to the company, hence reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xxi. There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 

 
  
 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 

 
 

Sd/- 
Milind Shah 
Partner 
Membership Number: 107119 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2022  
UDIN: 22107119AJYCFJ7276 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act. 
 
1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of VJTF 

EDUSERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

 
4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 

 
 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
6.  A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that  

 
a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and  
 

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
7.   Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 
8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
For J. Kala & Associates 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sd/- 
Milind Shah 
Partner 
Membership Number: 107119 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2022 
UDIN: 22107119AJYCFJ7276  
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 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh

A ASSETS

1 NON CURRENT ASSETS
           a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 381.65 505.66
           b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53 936.53
           c) Right of Use Assets 3 2,152.20 2,529.29
           d) Financial Assets

       i) Investments
          a) Subsidiary and Associate 4 (i) 795.95 795.95
          b) Others 4 (ii) - 0.92

       ii) Other Financial Assets 5 383.03 2,058.53
             e)  Deferred Tax Asset (net) 6 3.85 3.95
             f)  Income Tax Asset (net) 7 29.55 19.57

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,682.76 6,850.40

2 CURRENT ASSETS
       a) Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 8 5.56 37.62
ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 166.81 46.35
iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 1.86 -
iv. Loans 11 1,394.04 513.73
v. Other Financial Assets 12 353.64 316.29

       b) Other Current Assets 13 66.25 5.62
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,988.16 919.61

TOTAL ASSETS 6,670.92 7,770.01

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY
       a) Equity Share Capital 14 1,760.00 1,760.00
       b) Other Equity 15 (393.29) (435.65)

TOTAL EQUITY 1,366.71 1,324.35

2 LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

  a)  Financial Liabilities
i.  Borrowings 16 496.86 658.36
ii. Lease Liabilities 17 2,558.79 2,594.43

         iii.Other Financial Liabilities 18 51.57 62.09
  b)  Provisions 19 25.65 32.47

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,132.87 3,347.35

CURRENT LIABILITIES
    a)  Financial Liabilities

i.   Borrowings 20 292.93 288.50
ii.  Lease Liabilities 21 2.43 55.97
iii. Trade Payables
    a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
    b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 22 114.01 223.90
iv. Other Financial Liabilities 23 86.55 642.47

     b)  Other Current Liabilities 24 1,671.26 1,886.52
     c)  Provisions 25 4.16 0.95

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,171.34 3,098.32

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,670.92 7,770.01
Summary of significant Accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial statements 1-62

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

     Sd/-      Sd/-
      Sd/- DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN
MILIND SHAH DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
PARTNER DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103
Membership No. 107119

PLACE :  MUMBAI      Sd/-      Sd/-
DATE : 30th May, 2022 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Membership No.A52723

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 PARTICULARS  NOTES
 AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2021
 AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2022
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 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh

I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 26 747.68 500.90
Other Income 27 598.64 407.78

TOTAL INCOME 1,346.32 908.68

II EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 28 367.77 406.54
Finance Costs 29 441.51 489.55
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2 277.95 288.37
Other Expenses 30 238.74 255.91

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,325.97 1,440.37

III Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (I-II) 20.35 (531.68)

IV Tax Expense :
a) Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (9.98) -
b) Deferred Tax (3.05) (34.81)

(13.03) (34.81)

V Profit / (Loss) for the year (III-IV) 33.38 (496.87)

VI Other Comprehensive Income
a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
        Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 12.14 4.12
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (3.16) (1.07)
b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items - -

8.98 3.05

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (V+VI) 42.36 (493.82)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in Rs.) 0.19 (2.82)
 (Nominal value of Equity Share Rs. 10)

  Summary of significant Accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial statements 1-62

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

     Sd/-      Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

     Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

MILIND SHAH DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103

PARTNER
Membership No. 107119

PLACE : MUMBAI      Sd/-      Sd/-

DATE : 30th May, 2022 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Membership No.A52723

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2022

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2021

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 PARTICULARS  NOTES

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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PARTICULARS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax: 20.35 (531.68)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 277.95 288.37
Accrued liability for Gratuity 8.52 10.00
Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back (116.08) (12.19)
Sundry Balances written off 0.89 1.39
Bad debts written off 22.58 -
Lease liability written back on rent concession (307.98) (208.86)
Loss on Lease Termination 5.42 -
Interest Income on Unwinding & FD Interest (162.43) (177.74)
Finance Costs 441.51 489.55

190.74 (141.17)

Movements in Working Capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 9.47 (29.57)
Decrease in Financials and other assets (Current & Non-Current) 1,778.41 10.65
Decrease in Trade Payables, Liabilities and Provisions (449.81) (335.99)
Cash flow / (used in) Operations 1,528.81 (496.08)
Income tax paid (Net) 0.00 (0.08)
Net cash flow/ (used in) Operating Activities 1,528.81 (496.16)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment (6.11) -
Loans Given (880.31) -
Loans given received back - 795.70
Proceed from sale of non-current Investment 0.91 -
Interest Received 0.04 0.61
Net cash flow/ (Used in)  from Investing Activities (885.47) 796.31

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings - 133.26
Repayment of Borrowings (396.82) (160.38)
Payment of lease liabilities (2.83) (97.88)
Finance Costs paid (123.23) (172.82)

Net cash used in Financing Activities (522.88) (297.82)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C ) 120.46 2.33

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 46.35 44.01
166.81 46.34

 Notes :
1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to this years classification.

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

     Sd/-      Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

     Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
MILIND SHAH DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119      Sd/-      Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN
PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DATE : 30th May, 2022 Membership No.A52723

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH , 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Operating profit/ (loss) before Working Capital changes
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at 31 March,
2022

As at 31
March, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,760.00 1,760.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance at the end of the reporting year 1,760.00 1,760.00

There are no changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors.

B. OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. in Lakh)

Other Comprehensive
Income

General reserve Retained
earnings

Remeasurement of net
defined benefit plans

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 200.00 (205.72) 63.89 58.17
Loss for the year - (496.87) - (496.87)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 3.05 3.05

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 200.00 (702.59) 66.94 (435.65)
Profit for the year - 33.38 - 33.38
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 8.98 8.98

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 200.00 (669.21) 75.92 (393.29)

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No. 118769W

     Sd/-      Sd/-
DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN

     Sd/- DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

MILIND SHAH DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119

PLACE : MUMBAI      Sd/-      Sd/-
DATE : 30th May, 2022 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Membership No.A52723

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

Particulars Total

Reserves and surplus

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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VJTF Eduservices Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 03rd September, 1984 having registered office at Mumbai.The Company has established itself as
an emerging player in the Education Services Segment. The Company provides services to Operational Education Projects. The Company also provides
required auxiliary / support services to other companies in the Education Sector.

1.  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules as
amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act.

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the following material items
that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:
(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities
(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The financial statements are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Company.

2.  Use of Estimates and judgments:
The preparation of the financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these
estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under
the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and
future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty
The Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:

(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions
(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments
(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables
(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably
measured.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

4. Intangible assets
Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation)  are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

5.  Investment Property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property.
Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment if any.

6. Depreciation and Amortization
(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The residual values,
useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method is
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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7.  Financial Instruments:
(a) Financial assets:

I. Initial recognition:
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a financial asset is
recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

II. Subsequent measurement:
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
 - amortised cost
 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:
 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

(i) Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such financial
assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the Effective Interest Rate method and impairment
losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and  Loss

III. Equity instruments:
On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These
elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’.
The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of
cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the ‘Other
income’ line item.

IV. Impairment :
The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit
loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all
reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is
measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL at
each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at
the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of
the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. For equity
instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing.
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V. Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash
flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company’s continuing involvement.

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

(b) Financial Liabilities
I. Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The Company’s financial liabilities
includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

II. Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

III. Loans & Borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized
in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

IV. Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

V. De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

VI. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

8.  Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

9 Cash and Cash equivalents :
Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original maturity is three months or less.
Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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10 Foreign Currency Transactions:
a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are restated at the closing exchange rates.  Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

11 Revenue Recognition :
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company
expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration received or
receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. The Company
earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Income from Services (Educational Activities)
Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or performance
obligation are satisfied.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Rent
Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Interest
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable and based on effective interest rate
method.

Dividend
Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.

12. Borrowing Cost:
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of
Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are complete during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

13. Taxes on Income:
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax
treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax liabilities are
provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally enforceable right and
where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis.

Deferred tax:
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements. Deferred income tax asset are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be
realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income-tax during the specified period. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.
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14. Employee Benefits:
(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
(b) Post-employment obligations
The Company has following post-employment plans:
(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and
(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

(i) Defined-benefit plan:
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of
the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is calculated annually by actuaries through actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements;
(b) Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses
(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling
are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee and
pensioner demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best
practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive
income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.

(ii) Defined-contribution plan:
Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal obligation
to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the government, superannuation fund and
certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised
as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

15. Leases:
Where the Company is Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i)                  

(ii)                

(iii)               

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior
to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount
is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of use) and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Where the Company is Lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature.

16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources
or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

17. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely dependent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
asset over its remaining useful life.

18. Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint-ventures and Associate:
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

19. Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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No. of Shares Rs. in Lakh No. of Shares Rs. in Lakh
4 (i) INVESTMENTS (Non-Current)

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Subsidiaries and Associate (At cost, fully paid up)

  a) Subsidiaries
 VJTF Buildcon Private Limited * 10 8,65,000 313.70 8,65,000 313.70

  b) Associate
 VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited **
(Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited) 16,38,217 482.25 16,38,217 482.25

Total (i) 795.95 795.95

4 (ii)  Others (Carried at fair value through other comprehensive
income fully paid up)

 Malad Sahakari Bank Ltd. 10 - - 100 0.01

 Mangal Co-op. Bank Ltd. 50 - - 1,810 0.91

Total (ii) - 0.92

GRAND TOTAL (i + ii) 795.95 796.87

Aggregate amount of quoted investments at market value - - - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments at cost - 795.95 - 796.87
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - - - -

*Pleadged in favour of Housing Finance Company against borrowing of a related party, Witty Enterprises Private Limited
 **Refer Note number 45

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2021

 Face Value
Per Share

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2022

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2021

 Rs. in Lakh  Rs. in Lakh

3 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
a) Gross block

Opening Gross Carrying Value 2,876.22 2,876.22
Disposals (354.36) -

Closing Gross Carrying Value 2,521.86 2,876.22

b) Accumulated Depriciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 346.93 199.10
Provision for the year 147.83 147.83
Disposals (125.10) -

Closing Depreciation 369.66 346.93

 Net block (a-b) 2,152.20 2,529.29

5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Non-Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Security deposits given to

Related parties* 331.55 2,007.24
Others 51.48 51.29

383.03 2,058.53
*(For details - Refer Note 37)

6 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

Deferred tax liabilities (Refer note below for component and movement) (41.84) (41.74)
MAT credit entitlement 45.69 45.69

3.85 3.95

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in Lakh)

 Property, Plant
and Equipment

 Financial Assets
/ Liabilities

 Unabsorbed
depreciation  Others

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06) 804.53 56.90 7.16 (75.47)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss 33.67 (43.03) 41.56 2.60 34.80
- to other comprehensive loss - - - (1.07) (1.07)

At 31st March, 2021 (910.39) 761.50 98.46 8.69 (41.74)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss (21.26) 22.09 0.00 2.22 3.05
- to other comprehensive loss - - - (3.16) (3.16)

At 31st March, 2022 (931.65) 783.59 98.46 7.75 (41.84)

7 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

29.55 19.57

29.55 19.57

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to

Particulars

Income Tax Receivable (Net of provision of Rs.Nil ,  As at 31st March, 2021 - Rs. 13.79 Lakhs)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

 Total Deferred Tax
Assets / (Liabilities)
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8 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured  considered good )
Trade Receivables 5.56 37.62

5.56 37.62

As at March,2022
(Rs. in Lakh)

    - - 5.56 - 5.56

   - - - -                                                -

 - - - -                                                -

 - - - -                                                -

As at March,2021
(Rs. in Lakh)

    0.10 33.89 3.63 - 37.62

   - -                                      - - -

 - - - - -

 - - - - -

9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand 15.24 11.61
Balances with banks in current accounts 151.57 34.74

166.81 46.35

10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents:

       Fixed Deposit with bank having maturity of less than 12 months* 1.82 -
        Interest accrued but not due on above 0.04 -

1.86 -
*Lien marked by bank against bank overdraft.

11 LOANS
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Loans and advances (in the nature of Loans) to related parties* 1,393.78 512.92
Loans and advance to employees 0.26 0.81

1,394.04 513.73
*(For details - Refer Note 37)

12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Current)
(Unsecured, Considered Good  )
Receivable against sale of asset 306.95 306.95
Amount Receivable from Related party* 35.55 -
Other Receivables 11.14 9.34

353.64 316.29
*(For details - Refer Note 37)

13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Rent 60.00 -

Prepaid Insurance 4.85 1.92

Prepaid Expenses 1.40 3.70

66.25 5.62

14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(A) Authorised
2,000.00 2,000.00

2,000.00 2,000.00

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2021 - 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each
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(B) Issued, subscribed and paid up

1,760.00 1,760.00

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,760.00 1,760.00

(C) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Number Rs. in Lakh
At the beginning of the year 176,00,000 1,760.00 176,00,000 1,760.00

Changes during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 176,00,000 1,760.00 176,00,000 1,760.00

(D) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity Shares

(E) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder Number  % of holding Number  % of holding
Vinay Dharamchand Jain 60,78,122 34.53 60,78,122 34.53
Raina Vinay Jain 51,77,051 29.42 51,77,051 29.42
Sam Financial Services Private Limited 16,04,649 9.12 16,04,649 9.12
Badri Baldawa 10,84,995 6.16 10,84,995 6.16

(F) Details of Share held by Promoters

Name of shareholder

 Number of
shares

 Percentage (%)
total shares

 Percentage (%)
change during the
year

Vinay Dharamchand Jain 60,78,122 34.53 No change
Raina Vinay Jain 51,77,051 29.42 No change
Dharamchand shah 24,000 0.14 No change
Bhimaladevi  Shah 24,000 0.14 No change

15 OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00 200.00
Retained earnings (669.21) (702.59)
Other comprehensive income 75.92 66.94

(393.29) (435.65)
Nature and purpose of other equity and reserves :

16 BORROWINGS (Non-Current)

Secured

Term Loans from
       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 363.38 383.62
       ICICI Bank 5.28 -
       ICICI Bank 10.20 -

ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans from
Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 43.87 66.78
Kotak Bank 18.83 37.16
HDFC Bank 17.43 30.13

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCs
(Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)

Kotak Bank - 24.63
HDFC Bank 34.93 103.91

     Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 2.94 12.13

496.86 658.36

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the Shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by them to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

As at 31 March, 2022

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they
don’t have any special purpose to fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future.

The  Shareholders have all other rights as available to equity Shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

As at 31st March, 2022

Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Shareholders have right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of
Directors and Final dividend  proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders.

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2021 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up
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Rate of Interest ,Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)

ICICI Bank Ltd:

Rate of Interest ,Details of Term of Repayment of ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans

Kotak Bank

HDFC Bank

 Vehicle Loans

Repayable by Rate of Interest Bank Name
September 20th, 2022 8.41%  Kotak Bank - 13.53

June 20th, 2022 and May 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank - 6.77
June 20th, 2022 and April 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank - 4.33

September 5th, 2023 9.67%  HDFC Bank 34.93 103.91
January, 2023 7.50% Services India Pvt. 2.94 12.13

37.87 140.67

17 LEASE LIABILITIES (Non-Current)
Lease Obligations*:
     Lease Liabilities 2,790.31 2,978.88
     Less: Rent Paid (231.52) (384.44)

2,558.79 2,594.43

18 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Employees 51.57 62.09

51.57 62.09

19 PROVISIONS (Non-Current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 25.65 32.47

                          25.65                               32.47

Carries interest at 7.92% p.a. (Previous Year 7.92% p.a.) The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium
period) commencing from August, 2020 and ending on July, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

2) Carries interest at 8.50% (Previous Year NIL) p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable property of Directors and
personally guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from December, 2021 and ending on
November, 2031.

1) Carries interest at 8.50% (Previous Year NIL) p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable property of Directors and
personally guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from December, 2021 and ending on
November, 2031.

Carries interest at 8.25% p.a. (Previous Year 8.25% p.a.)The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium
period) commencing from July, 2020 and ending on June, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

Carries interest at 13% p.a. (Previous Year 13% p.a.)The ECLGS loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associate
Company. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from October, 2020 and
ending on September, 2024.

*(For details - Refer Note 35 below)

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a. (Previous Year 12.50% p.a.). The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable property of Associate
Company and personally  guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending
on September, 2030.
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20 BORROWINGS (Current)

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 176.48 -
Loan from bodies corporate**                           35.57                               35.58

 Overdraft from Bank (Secured)*** 80.88 252.92

                        292.93                             288.50
*(For details of Securities- Refer Note 16 herein above)
  * *(Navnidhi Commerce Private Limited Rate of interest - NIL, Previous year - 12% p.a. and
    ( Samriddhi Finserve India Private Limited Rate of interest - nil p.a., Previous year - 12% p.a)

  ***(The Overdraft facility is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Director.Rate of interest 8.5% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

21 Lease Liabilites (Current)

 Lease Liabilities* 2.43 55.97

2.43 55.97

22 TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
114.01 223.90

114.01 223.90

 Und - - - -
   Und 20.41 0.23 35.26 114.01

 - - - - -
 - - - - -

20.41 58.11 0.23 35.26 114.01

 Und - - - - -
   Und 42.72 35.26 - 223.90

 - - - - -
 - - - - -

42.72 145.92 35.26 - 223.90

23 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Current)

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* - 239.75
Interest Accrued but not Due* 3.70 4.69

 Payable to a Related Party** 21.39 214.44
Due to Employees 61.46 183.59

86.55 642.47

**(For details - Refer Note 37)

24 OTHERS CURRENT LIABILITIES:

 Payable to a Related Party ** 324.68 566.55
 Advance received aginst sale of assets - 15.00
Contract Liability* (Fees Received in advance) 1,239.62 1,112.98

1,671.26 1,886.52
*(For details - Refer Note 43)
**(For details - Refer Note 37)

25 PROVISIONS (Current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 4.16 0.95

4.16 0.95

As at 31 March, 2022

*(For details - Refer Note 35 below)

*(For details of Securities- Refer Note 16 herein above)

 (Repayable on Demand)

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at 31 March, 2021

92



 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh
NOTE 26 :  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services (Educational Activities) - Refer Note 43

     Course and Other Fees 747.68 500.90

747.68 500.90

NOTE 27 : OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on:
        Bank Fixed Deposit 0.04 0.61
       Unwinding of Interest (Income) 162.39 177.13
Lease liability written back on rent concession 307.98 208.86

Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back 66.77 12.19

Excess Provisions for expenses written back 49.30 -

Miscellaneous Income 12.16 8.99

598.64 407.78

NOTE 28 :  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 357.82 395.35
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 1.25 1.18
Gratuity Expense 8.52 10.00
Staff Welfare 0.18 0.01

367.77 406.54

NOTE 29 :  FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense on:
      Borrowings 108.05 160.38
      Leased Liability 319.27 316.72
      Delayed Payment of Statutory dues 12.16 8.95
Other Borrowing Cost:
      Loan Processing Fees 2.03 3.50

441.51 489.55

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR  THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2021

Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

NOTE 30:  OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' Remuneration:

       Audit Fees 4.13 4.13
Advertisement and Publicity 0.72 4.23

Electricity 19.21 21.06

Events and Programmes - 0.01

Filing Fees 0.06 0.14

House Keeping Expenses 0.65 4.95

Insurance 6.61 9.19

Kids Welfare Activities 21.87 38.86

Legal and Professional 22.84 36.28

Office Expenses 44.31 74.90

Postage, Telegram, Telephone and Internet 0.78 1.06

Printing and Stationery 14.52 7.93

Rates and Taxes 0.79 3.04

Rent 0.60 -

Repairs and  Maintenance 3.14 0.65

Security Charges 13.82 20.15

Loss on Lease Termination 5.42 -

Travelling Expenses 0.34 0.03

Vehicle Expenses 31.57 19.66

Water Charges 0.66 0.37

Bank Charges 2.27 1.39

Cafeteria Expenses 20.44 6.42

Sundery balances Written off 0.89 1.39

Bad Debts Written off 22.58 -
Irrecoverable advance written off 51.25
Less: Related provision written back (51.25) - -
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.52 0.05

238.74 255.91

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR  THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
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31

 FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (9.98) -
Deferred Tax (3.05) (34.81)
Total tax expense (13.02) (34.81)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit before income tax expense 20.35 (531.68)
Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses on profit before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) 5.29 (138.24)

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)
Permanent Disallowances 3.16 2.33
Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (9.98) -
Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses (48.82) 101.37
Others 37.32 (0.26)

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (13.02) (34.81)

Effective tax rate -64.00% 6.55%

32

(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 4.16 25.65 0.95 32.47
29.81 26.60 33.43 32.48

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
(Rs. in lakh)

 Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets  Net amount
(UNFUNDED) Present value of obligation  Fair value of plan assets  Net amount

(UNFUNDED)

As at the beginning of the year 33.43 - 33.43 27.55 - 27.55

Current service cost 6.27 - 6.27 8.13 - 8.13
Past service cost - - - - - -
Interest expense 2.24 2.24 1.87 1.87
Total amount recognized in profit or
loss 8.51 - 8.51 10.00 - 10.00

Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in assumptions (1.65) - (1.65) 0.21 - 0.21

Experience gains (10.48) - (10.48) (4.33) - (4.33)
Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income (12.13) - (12.13) (4.12) - (4.12)

Benefit payments - - - - - -

As at end of the year 29.81 - 29.81 33.43 - 33.43

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions (Rs. in lakh)

 Increase in
assumption  Decrease in assumption  Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption

Discount rate 28.13 31.66 31.44 35.62
Salary growth rate 31.63 28.17 35.54 31.51

FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2021

Salary growth rate

Particulars

Total

Discount rate

FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2022

0.005

0.005

Change in assumption by

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company does not fund the liability and
maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determinedby actuarial valuation on the
reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

Income tax expenses
This note provides an analysis of the Company's income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the
Company's tax positions.

Employee benefit obligations

FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR  THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Particulars

FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2021Particulars
7.25% 6.80%

5.00% 5.00%

Particulars
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The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2022 as follows (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars
Year 1 4.16
Year 2 1.09
Year 3 1.18
Year 4 1.22
Year 5 1.17
Thereafter 11.17
The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.47 years.

33

Particulars
Total for the year ended March, 2022

Total for the year ended March,
2021

I. Income:
Excess provision for expenses written back 49.3 -

Gain on Rent Concession 84.96 -

II. Expenditure:

Discount given in tuition fees 21.01 -

Net Impect - Income / (Expenses) 113.25 -

34 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of : FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
a) Disputed Income Tax matters 181.63 81.02
b) Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35 25,017.35

35 Leases

FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

FOR YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
Opening balance 2,650.40 2,640.42
Additions during the year - -
Interest accrued during the year 319.27 316.72
Deletions (97.64) -
Lease liability written back on rent concession (307.98) (208.86)
Lease payments (2.83) (97.88)
Closing Balance 2,561.22 2,650.40
Out of above:
      Current Lease Liabilities 2.43 55.97
      Non Current Lease Liabilities 2,558.79 2,594.43

(ii) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 st March, 2022 on an undiscounted basis: :

Not later than one year 191.40 191.40
Later than one year and not later than five years 932.40 881.70
Later than five years 7,362.20 7,604.30
Total 8,486.00 8,677.40

(iii) Rental expenses for short-term leases recognised in statement of profit and loss                                         0.60                                            -

0.60 -

36 Earnings per share  AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2022

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2021

Profit (Loss) for the year (Rs.in lakhs) (A) 33.38 (496.87)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 176,00,000 176,00,000

Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) (A/B) 0.19 (2.82)
Face value of equity shares 10 10

37 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A. List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management)

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists
I.   Subsidiary

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

II. Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited

 C) The Following impacts arising out of "covid" relating to previous year have been crystallized and accounted as under :

A)During the year the business of the Company was significantly impacted by the continuous delay in re-opening of schools amid Covid-19 lockdown restrictions. The Management is continuously monitoring the
situation and expects an improvement in the business going forward considering the pace of vaccine, reduction in the number of cases and opening up of schools. However, two entry level grades i.e. Play Group
and Nursery were not possible to function smoothly on online platforms during the year. Therefore, was not be possible to collect fees for these two grades for the academic year 2021-22. Besides, the
transport/utility facility income is affected badly during this pandemic time Management has not recognized income from both entry level grades and transport/utility facility, resulting in revenue being significantly
reduced.

The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions, wherever required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements.

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

B)The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from the date of quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 and has concluded that there are major impact on
liquidity due to collections are reduced substantially for the current academic year 2021-22 and the same adjustments are recorded in the standalone financial statements. Management believes that it has taken into
account all the possible impact of known events till the date of approval of its financial statements arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the stand-alone financial statements.The Company will
continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

(i) Carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

* Note: Include demand of Rs.38.60 Lakh for the assessment year 2017-18 order dated 20th December, 2019, Rs.42.42 Lakh for the assessment year 2018-19 vide order dated 24th May, 2021 and Rs.100.61
Lakh for the assessment year 2019-20 vide demand letter dated 10th May, 2020.
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b. Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)
VJTF Construction Private Limited
Witty Education Private Limited
Witty Enterprises Private Limited
Witty Infratech Private Limited
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust
Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. Vinay Jain, Director
Dr. Raina Jain, Director

B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

I. Transactions during the year (Rs. in lakhs)

Subsidiary Associate / Others Key Management
Personnel Subsidiary Associate / Others Key Management Personnel

Operational and Management Fees
income

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 2.00 - - 2.00 -

Income Collected on our behalf by

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 7.98 - - 0.80 -

Witty Education Private limited - 5.84 - - - -
Witty Global Education Trust 0.10

Interest Expenses
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited - - - - 89.31 -

Lease Rent Expenses
Dr.Raina Jain - - 2.40 - - 2.40

Director's Remuneration Expenses
Dr.Vinay Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00
Dr.Raina Jain - - 60.00 - - 60.00

Reimbersment of Expenses given

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 8.51 - - 15.34 -

Witty Global Education Trust 4.49 8.94
Witty Education Private limited - 1.46 - - 7.03 -

Loans Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited - 880.86 - - 5.68 -

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited - - 10.62 - -

Loans Given Received Back

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited - - - 809.70 - -

Operation & Managment Deposits
Received Back

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 1,400.14 - - - -

Lease Deposit Received Back
Witty Global Education Trust - 449.19 - - - -

Other Receivable- Repaid
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - - - 0.06 -

Payments made on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09

Payments made on behalf of - received
back:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09 -

Payments received on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 2,666.94 - - 1,613.16 -

Witty Education Private Limited - 112.29 - - 352.97 -
Witty Global Education Trust - 981.93 - - 33.04 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited - 0.19 - - 10.00 -

Particulars
YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022
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Payments received on behalf of -
repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 2,855.57 - - 1,517.84 -

Witty Education Private Limited - 112.29 - - 970.70 -
Witty Global Education Trust - 986.35 - - 28.63 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited - 242.05 - - 8.32 -

Security cum Guarantee Given
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - - - 10,000.00 -
Witty Infratech Private Limited - - - - 1,100.00 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) - - - - 1,000.00 -

- - - - - 500.00

Rent Paid
Witty Global Education Trust 15.90
Dr Raina Jain 7.50

Amount Recoverable
Witty Global Education Trust 35.55

II. Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in lakhs)

Loan Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited - 1,393.78 - - 512.92 -

Lease Deposit Given
Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 479.19 -
Dr.Raina Jain - - 411.17 - - 411.17

Operation & Managment Deposits

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - - - 1,400.14 -

Investment in Shares of an subsidiary
and associate
VJTF Buildcon Private Limited 313.70 - - 313.70 - -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai)
Private Limited - 482.25 - - 482.25 -

Rent Payables
Witty Global Education Trust - - - - 15.90 -
Dr.Raina Jain - - 1.00 - - 5.66

Loans Taken
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited - - - - 566.55 -

Other Current Liability
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur)
Private Limited - 324.68 - - - -

Payable to associates

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - 21.39 - - 210.03 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - - 4.41

Director's Remuneration Payable

Dr.Vinay Jain - - 4.63 - - 29.42

Dr.Raina Jain - - 4.07 - - 38.96

Security cum Guarantee taken
VJTF Construction Private Limited - 400.00 - - 400.00 -
Dr Raina Jain - - 400.00 - - 400.00

Security cum Guarantee Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) - 10,357.35 - - 10,357.35 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) - 3,060.00 - - 3,060.00 -
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - 10,000.00 - - 10,000.00 -
Witty Infratech Private Limited - 1,100.00 - - 1,100.00 -
Dr Raina Jain - - 500.00 - - 500.00

Amount Recoverable
Witty Global Education Trust 35.55 - - -

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .
2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.
3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

Subsidiary Associate/Others Key Management
Personnel

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

Subsidiary Associate/ Others

notes :

Key
Management

Personnel

Particulars

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022
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38
A Loans and advances (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding
Balances as at
the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

Outstanding Balances as
at the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 512.92
VJTF Buildcon Private Limited - - - 809.70
Total 1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 1,322.62

B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposit (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding
Balances as at
the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

Outstanding Balances as
at the year end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the

year

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust - 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14
Witty Global Education Trust - 479.19 479.19 479.19
Dr. Raina Jain 411.17 411.17 411.17 411.17
Total 411.17 2,290.50 2,290.50 2,290.50

39 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

40 Fair value measurements and accoutning classification

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2022

 AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Financial assets carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current
Investments (Subsidiaries, Associates) 795.95 795.95
Other Investments - 0.92
Other Financial Assets 383.03 2,058.53

Current
Trade Receivables 5.56 37.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 166.81 46.35
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.86 -
Loans 1,394.04 513.73
Other Financial Assets 353.64 316.29

3,100.89 3,769.39
Financial liabilities carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)

Non-Current
Borrowings 496.86 658.36
Lease Liability 2,558.79 2,594.43
Other Financial Liabilities 51.57 62.09

Current
Borrowings 292.93 288.50
Trade Payables 114.01 223.90
Lease Liabilities 2.43 55.97
Other Financial Liabilities 86.55 642.47

3,603.13 4,525.72

41

(A) Credit Risk

Name of the Party

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is
when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore,
defining levels of fair value hiearchy is not applicable.

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022

Name of the Party

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.

Refer note 4 and 37 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial reliability of customers, taking into
account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the Company’s risk management is carried
out by a corporate finance team under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the
Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

Financial risk management

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is performed on a Company basis for each
class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery,such as a debtor failing to engage in a repaymentplan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Company continues engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.
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(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2022

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans 8.74 8.23 14.33 32.26 353.65 417.21
ECLGS 13.74 12.96 26.01 59.26 20.87 132.84
Vehicle Loans 36.72 20.42 35.32 34.93 - 127.39
Loan from bodies corporate - - 35.57 - - 35.57

Overdraft from bank - - 80.88 - - 80.88
Trade payables 20.41 - 58.11 0.23 35.26 114.01
Security deposits - - - - 51.57 51.57
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings 3.70 - - - - 3.70

Lease Liabilites - - 2.43 - 2,558.79 2,561.22
Payable to a Related Party - - 21.39 - - 21.39
Other payables 61.46 - - - - 61.46
Total non-derivative liabilities 144.77 41.62 274.04 126.69 3,020.14 3,607.24

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2021

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

Term Loans 4.84 4.99 10.47 23.89 359.73 403.93
ECLGS 5.82 12.27 31.72 52.45 81.62 183.88
Vehicle Loans 47.35 47.13 75.14 102.80 37.87 310.29
Loan from Body Corporate - - 35.58 - - 35.58

Overdraft from bank - - 252.92 - - 252.92
Trade payables 42.72 - 145.92 35.26 - 223.90
Security deposits - - - - 62.09 62.09
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings 4.69 - - - - 4.69

Lease Liablities - - 55.97 - 2,594.43 2,650.40
Payable to a Related Party - - 214.44 - - 214.44
Other payables 115.21 68.38 - - - 183.59
Total non-derivative liabilities 220.63 132.77 822.16 214.40 3,135.74 4,525.71

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

Particular
Increase in basis Point Decrease in basis Point

2021-2022
 Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC

4.97 (4.97)

Particular
Increase in basis Point Decrease in basis Point

2020-2021
 Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC 6.58 -6.58

Currencyrisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet date, the Company does not have foreign
currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currencyrisk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company's treasury
team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss
rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision considered. ( Ageing of Account
receivables - Refer Note 8)

For details of the Company’s current and non current loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note 16 and 20 of these financial statements.

Profit or Loss

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group is expected the interest rate fluctuations over next 12 months. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in the interest rates with all other variables held constant. The
sensitivity analysis is prepared as at the reporting date.

Profit or Loss

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with
practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery,such as a debtor failing to engage in a repaymentplan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the
Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.
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42 Capital Management

 (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars  AS AT
31ST MARCH, 2022

 AS AT
31st MARCH, 2021

799.45 1,140.26

Total equity 1,366.71 1,324.35
Net debt to equity ratio 58.49% 86.10%
Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

43

A
 (Rs. in lakhs)

YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH, 2022

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2021

Contracted price 1,118.57 557.64
(370.89) (56.74)

747.68 500.90

B

C  (Rs. in lakhs)

YEAR ENDED 31st
MARCH, 2022

 YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2021

1,112.98 1,098.08
(1,112.98) (1,098.08)

1,239.62 1,112.98

1,239.62 1,112.98

44

45

46 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

47 Ratio Analysis :

Sr. No. Ratio Formula 2021-22 2020-21 Variance Reasons

Current Assets 0.92% 0.30% 208.49% Additional lonas given

Current Liabilities
Total Debt 0.58% 0.71% -19.17%

Shareholders Equity
Earnings for Debt service 1.9% -2.60% -173.04% Loss in last  Financial year
(Interest + Instalment)
Earnings After Tax 0.02% -0.38 -106.51% Loss in last  Financial year
Net Worth

5 Inventory turnover ratio (Times) NA

Sales 242% 24.15% 901.92%

Realisation of Trade
Receivables of earlier years

Average Accounts receivable
Sales 11.81% 4.06% 190.97% Income increased
Trade Payable
Sales -7.35% -0.42% 1662.24% Current assets increased
Working Capital Employed
Net profit 0.02% -0.55% -104.53% Income increased
Sales
Total Earnings 0.34% -0.03% -1162.21% Income increased
Total capital Employed
Total Earnings 2.44% -37.52% -106.51% Income increased
Total capital Employed

Particulars

Particulars

Legal Disputes with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) related to Mumbai and Udaipur School properties are sub judice with Hon’ble Bombay High Court. The Company has made detailed
assessment of its impact on loans given of Rs. 1394 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 513 Lacs), guarantee given of Rs. 13417 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 13417 Lacs ) and investment made of Rs. 482 Lakhs (Previous
Year Rs. 482 Lacs)and based on the advice given by external legal counsel, no provision/adjustment has been considered necessary by the management with respect to the above matters in these
standalone/consolidated annual financial results, considering the uncertainty relating to the outcome of the matters .

1 Current Ratio (Times)

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment – The amendmentclarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from
the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022.

Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets – The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly
to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effectivedate for adoption of this amendmentis annual periods beginning on or after 1st April,
2022, although early adoption is permitted.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to :
1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performanceobligations, along with the broad time band for the expected time to
recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time based and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs.1,112.98 lakhs, which is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next year.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under Ind AS 116)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performanceand allocates resources
based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz.,‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence, the Company does
not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

Balance at the end of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year

Revenue recognised

2 Debt-Equity Ratio (Times)

Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments – The amendmentclarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognisea financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid
or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

Ind AS 103 | Business combinations – The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and contingent liabilities

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendments.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards / amendments under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.:

Balance at the beginning of the year

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

Revenue from contracts with customers

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (Times)

3
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Times)

9

7

6

4 Return on Equity Ratio (%)

Net capital turnover ratio (Times)

Return on Capital employed  (%)

Net profit ratio  (%)

11 Return on investment  (%)

Trade payables turnover ratio (Times)

10

8
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AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.: 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No. 00235276 DIN No. 01142103
MILIND SHAH
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN
PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DATE : 30th May, 2022

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

The Company does not have any such transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrenderedor disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Previous years’ figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, there is no
indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such
reconciliation/adjustments.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period except for registration of charge for availing an overdraft facility, during the year, secured
against property of Directors.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment .

CSR Expenditure include expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule VII thereof: Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh).
Gross amount required to be spent as per aforesaid provision is Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh)

The Company has not traded or invested in any Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

As the company is not falling under NBFC category, the Company has not furnished any statements with RBI for the same. The Company is regularly following up with RBI towards cancellation of the NBFC
licence for which their confirmation / approval is still awaited.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 5th March, 2013 decided not to carry any activity which falls under the criteria of NBFC for which registration with RBI is required. The Management decided to
venture in to the education sector and merged Vinay Jain's Training Forum Pvt. Ltd. with itself (appointed date being 1st April, 2011). The Company vide letter dated 30.05.2013 had submitted to the Department
of Non- Banking Supervision, Mumbai Regional Office, Reserve Bank of India an application for voluntary surrender of Certificate of Registration no. 13.00998 held as in the name of Artheon Finance Company.
Subsequently, the company vide its letter dated 4th February, 2019 has surrendered Original Certificate of Registration as NBFC to The Department of Non-Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India.

The Company (Artheon Finance Limited) was registered as Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFC) under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1034 vide Registration No. 13.00998 dated 5th September, 1998 as  non-
accepting deposit NBFC. The Company had never accepted any deposits from the public during its tenure of business of NBFC.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other   lender.

The Company is not involved in any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
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    INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of VJTF EDUSERVICES 
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”), its subsidiary (Holding 
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and its associate which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss,(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.(herein after referred to as “the 
consolidated financial statements”). 
 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated profit (including  other 
comprehensive income) ,their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes 
in equity for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 
 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe 
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matters 
 

4. We draw Attention to note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, which describe the 
uncertainty caused by Novel Corona virus (COVID-19).  
 

5. We draw Attention to Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements, relating to the legal 
dispute with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI). 

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
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Key Audit Matters 

 
6. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our 
report. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

 
7. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board’s Report including annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 

8. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 
9. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 

10. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in 
equity, of the Group including its Associate in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of 
its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been 
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors 
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
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11. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability 
of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

12. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its 
associate is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of 
its associate. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

13. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 
 

14. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and 
of its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and of 
its associate to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group and of its associate to express an opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
15. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 
 

16. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 

17. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

  
18. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

19. In the case of associate, the financial statements/special purpose financial information for the 
year ended March 31, 2022 is not available. In absence whereof, the Group’s share of total 
comprehensive income of associate for the year ended March 31, 2022 has not been included 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly, we do not report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information in so far to the 
extent these relate to the aforesaid associate. 
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Attention is also drawn to Note No. 47 to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect 
to non-availability of financial information. 
  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

20. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

 
(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account and records maintained for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, 
none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in “Annexure A”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197 (16) of the act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid in respect of the Holding Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending 
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litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group – Refer Note 36 
(a) and 47. 

 
ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022. 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year 
ended March 31, 2022 by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company. 

iv. a) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
b) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
 
c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

 
v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

Hence, reporting the compliance with section 123 of the Act is not 
applicable. 

 

 
For J. Kala & Associate 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
    Sd/- 
Milind Shah 
Partner 
Membership Number: 107119 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2022 
UDIN: 22107119AJYCFW2960 
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Referred to in paragraph 20(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act 
 
1.  In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and 

for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) its 
subsidiary company and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
2.  The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company and its 

associate, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect 
of the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is applicable, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).  
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

 
4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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March 31, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 
 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Opinion 
 

7. In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its associate, which are 
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022 , based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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Other Matter 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting does not cover associate in 
absence of availability of financial statements/special purpose financial information.  
 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

 
 
For J. Kala & Associate 
Firm Registration Number: 118769W 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
 Sd/- 
 
Milind Shah 
Partner 
Membership Number: 107119 
 
Place: Mumbai  
Date: 30th May, 2022 
UDIN: 22107119AJYCFW2960 
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 (Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

A ASSETS

1 NON CURRENT ASSETS

        a) Property, plant and equipment 2 381.65 505.66
        b) Goodwill on Amalgamation 936.53 936.53
        c) Investment Accounted for using the Equity Method 3 - -
        d) Right of Use Assets 4 2,152.20 2,529.29
        e) Financial Assets

   i. Investments 5 - 0.92
   ii. Other Financial Assets 6 3,598.64 5,274.14

        f)  Deferred Tax Asset (net) 7 5.16 3.95
        g)  Income Tax Asset (net) 8 30.95 19.57

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 7,105.13 9,270.06

2 CURRENT ASSETS
        a) Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 9 5.56 37.62
ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 168.28 12.80
iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 1.86 34.78
iv. Loans 12 1,394.04 513.73
v. Other Financial Assets 13 353.64 316.34

        b) Other Current Assets 14 66.25 5.62
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,989.63 920.89

TOTAL ASSETS 9,094.76 10,190.95

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY
        a) Equity Share Capital 15 1,760.00 1,760.00
        b) Other Equity 16 1,461.95 1,412.10
        Equity attributable to owners of the company 3,221.95 3,172.10
        c) Non-Controlling Interest 565.48 563.89

TOTAL EQUITY 3,787.43 3,735.99

2 LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
        a) Financial Liabilities
               i) Borrowings 17 496.86 658.36
              ii) Lease Liabilities 18 2,558.79 2,594.43
              iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 51.57 62.09
        b)  Provisions 20 25.65 32.47

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,132.87 3,347.35

CURRENT LIABILITIES
        a) Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 21 293.54 528.25
ii.  Lease Liabilities 22 2.43 55.97
iii. Trade Payables

             a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
              b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 114.97 224.78

iv. Other Financial Liabilities 24 86.55 402.72
        b) Other Current Liabilities 25 1,672.81 1,888.07
        c) Provisions 26 4.16 0.95
        d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 - 6.88

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,174.46 3,107.61

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,094.76 10,190.95

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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 AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
 FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W DR. VINAY JAIN                DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR                           DIRECTOR
DIN No.00235276                DIN No.01142103

Sd/-
MILIND SHAH
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE  :  MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DATE  :  30th May 2022 Membership No. A52723

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

  CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

   Sd/-                                           Sd/-

   Sd/-                                             Sd/-

 PARTICULARS  NOTES
AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2022
AS AT

31ST MARCH, 2021
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(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 28 747.68 500.90
Other Income 29 598.64 407.78

TOTAL INCOME 1,346.32 908.68

II EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 30 367.77 406.53
Finance Costs 31 441.51 491.11
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 277.95 288.37
Other Expenses 32 239.28 256.42
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,326.51 1,442.43

Profit before share of profits / (loss) of an associate 19.81 (533.75)
Add:  Share of loss of an associate - -
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 19.81 (533.75)

Tax Expense :
     a) Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (19.57) -
     b) Deferred Tax (3.05) (34.81)

Profit / (Loss) for the year (A) 42.43 (498.94)

Other Comprehensive Income
a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
              Re-measurement Gain on defined benefit plans 12.14 4.12
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items (3.16) (1.07)
b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
    (ii) Income tax relating to above items - -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 8.98 3.05

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year (A+B) 51.41 (495.89)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 40.84 (498.59)
Non - controlling interests 1.59 (0.36)

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 49.82 (495.54)
Non - controlling interests 1.59 (0.36)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share  (in Rs.) 0.23 (2.83)
(Nominal value of equity share  Rs.10 per )

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the
Financial Statements 1-65

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W DR. VINAY JAIN                DR. RAINA JAIN

DIRECTOR                           DIRECTOR
Sd/- DIN No.00235276                DIN No.01142103

MILIND SHAH
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119 SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE  :  MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  :  30th May 2022 Membership No. A52723

         Sd/-                                          Sd/-

         Sd/-                                          Sd/-

NOTES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR
ENDED

31ST MARCH , 2022

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH , 2021PARTICULARS
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(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax: 19.81 (533.75)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 277.95 288.37
Accrued liability for Gratuity 8.52 10.00
Sundry Balances and Provisions no longer required written back (116.07) (12.19)
Sundry Balances written off 0.89 1.39
Bad debts written off 22.58 -
Lease liability written back on rent concession (307.98) (208.86)
Loss on Lease Termination 5.42 -
Interest Income on Unwinding & FD Interest (162.43) (177.74)
Finance Costs 441.51 491.11

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital changes 190.20 (141.67)

Movements in Working Capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 9.48 (29.57)
Decrease in Financials and other assets (Current and Non Current) 1,779.04 643.17
Decrease in Trade Payable, Liabilities and Provisions (449.72) (344.58)
Cash flow from Operations 1,528.99 127.35
Income tax paid (Net) 1.31 (0.08)
Net cash flow from Operating Activities 1,530.30 127.27

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment (6.11) -
Loan Given (880.31) (3.37)
Proceeds from sale of non-current investment 0.91 -
Interest received 0.04 177.74
Net cash flow from / (Used in) Investing Activities (885.47) 174.37

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Borrowings - 8.82
Repayment of Borrowings (396.20) (35.95)
Payment of lease liabilities (2.83) (97.88)
Finance Costs paid (123.23) (174.38)
Net cash used in Financing Activities (522.27) (299.39)

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C ) 122.56 2.25

Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 47.58 45.33

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 170.14 47.58

 Notes :
1
2

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR J.KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration  No. 118769W

DR. VINAY JAIN                DR. RAINA JAIN
DIRECTOR                           DIRECTOR

MILIND SHAH DIN No.00235276                DIN No.01142103
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119
PLACE  :  MUMBAI SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN
DATE  :  30th May 2022 COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

 Membership No. A52723

   Sd/-

         Sd/-                                          Sd/-

         Sd/-                                          Sd/-

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in IndAS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to this years classification.

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021
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VJTF Eduservices Limited ( the Company) was incorporated on 03rd September, 1984 having registered office at mumbai. The Company has
established itself as an emerging player in the education services segment. The Company provide services to Operation Education Project. The
Company also provides required auxiliary / support services to other companies in the Education Sector.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ’Ind
AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules as amended from time to time  and other related provisions of the Act.

The Group had prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under companies (Accounting
Standard) Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory
reporting requirement in India.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and Historical cost convention except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

(i)   Certain financial assets and liabilities
(ii)  Defined benefit employee plan

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements . All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

The consolidated financial statements  are presented in INR, the functional currency of the Group.

Basis of Consolidatation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent company and its subsidiary as at March 31, 2022.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has
(a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary.

Consolidatation Procedure
Subsidiaries
(a) Combine, on line by line basis like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent with those of its subsidiaries.
For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the Parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.
(c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and Cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group
(profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment (PPE), are
eliminated in full). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a
member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies .

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries:
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous

Associates
Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investment in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
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The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Management to make, judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in
the consolidated financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are continuously evaluated by the management and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events) that the management believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ
from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

The Group is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
(a) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions
(b) Estimation of fair value of financial instruments
(c) Estimated credit loss of trade receivables
(d) Estimation of current tax expenses and payable

Property, plant and equipment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of
the item can be reliably measured.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill on amalgamation) are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and
impairment if any.

(a) Property plant and equipment (PPE) and Investment Property
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a straight line method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to the Act. The
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. On initial recognition, a financial
asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
 - amortised cost
 - fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)
 - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The above classification is being determined considering the:
 - the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
 - the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the group changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

(i) Measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, if these financial assets are held within a business module whose objective is to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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(ii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such
financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling
financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the Effective Interest
Rate method and impairment losses, if any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and  Loss

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments
through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss are included
in the ‘Other income’ line item.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The
credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after
considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is forward looking.

The Group’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables
is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss
allowance.

Under simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on the lifetime ECL
at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted
for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Group recognises 12–months expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets
if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are
measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Group
reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss. For equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement of impairment testing.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights to receive
cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s financial
liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
(ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.
(iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where original
maturity is three months or less. Outstanding bank overdrafts are adjusted in cash and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year.

b) Measurement of Foreign Currency Items at the Balance Sheet Date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Group are restated at the closing exchange rates. Non monetary items are recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing on the date of the transaction.  Exchange differences arising out of these transactions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration
received or receivable, adjusted for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers. The Company earns revenue primarily from providing educational services.

Revenues from services rendered are recognized pro-rata on accrual basis over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered or
performance obligation are satisfied.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due).
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Rental Income is recognised on a time proportion basis as per the contractual obligations agreed with the respective tenant.

Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive the same is established.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a
part of Cost of that assets, during the period till all the activities necessary to prepare the Qualifying assets for its intended use or sale are complete
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to
items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax:
Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting
and tax treatments, and due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on
tax liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Group offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) where it has a legally
enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and liabilities on net basis.

Deferred tax:
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in consolidated financial statements .
Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more
likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay
normal income-tax during the specified period. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT
credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal income-tax during the specified period.

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.
(b) Post-employment obligations
The Group has following post-employment plans:
(i) Defined benefit plans such a gratuity and
(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements;
(b) Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from
(a) Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses
(b) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
(c) Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling
are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19 requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation and discount rates and employee
and pensioner demographics. The Group determines the assumptions in conjunction with its actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line
with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other
comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may be also interdependency between some of the assumptions.
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(ii) Defined-contribution plan:
Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Group pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal
obligation to pay additional sums. Defined Contribution plan comprise of contributions to the employees’ provident fund with the government,
superannuation fund and certain state plans like Employees’ State Insurance and Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Group’s payments to the defined
contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

Where the Group is Lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability shown under Other Financial Liabilities and right of use asset is shown in Plant property and equipment as lease Asset (Right of use)
and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lesser is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the
receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of
resources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements .

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely dependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint-venture and associate are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.

Basic earnings per shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

3 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
at cost, fully paid up As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st

March, 2021

In an Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited
Formerly known as VJTF Infrastructure Private
Limited. (Face value of share Rs. 10) 16,38,217 16,38,217 104.25 104.25
Add: Share of accumulated loss (104.25) (104.25)

- -

4 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
a) Gross block

Opening Gross Cariyng Value 2,876.22 2,876.22
Disposals (354.36) -

Closing Gross Cariyng Value 2,521.86 2,876.22

b) Accumulated Depriciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 346.93 199.10
Provision for the year 147.83 147.83
Disposals (125.10) -

Closing Depreciation 369.66 346.93

 Net block (a-b) 2,152.20 2,529.29

5 INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

(At cost, fully paid up)
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st

March, 2021

Malad Sahakari Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 10) - 100 - 0.01

Mangal Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Face value of share Rs. 50) - 1,810 - 0.91

- 0.92

6 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits given to
      Related Parties* 331.55 5,222.85
      Others 51.48 51.29
Other Depsoit given to related Party 3,215.61 -

3,598.65 5,274.14
Operation and Management Deposits (Related Party)
*( For details -Refer Note-39)

7 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability(Refer note below for component and
movement) (41.84) (41.74)
MAT Credit Entitlement 47.00 45.69

5.16 3.95

Component and movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) : (Rs. in lakh)

 Particulars  Property, Plant
and Equipment

 Financial Assets /
Liabilities

 Unabsorbed tax
losses and

depreciation
 Others  Total Deferred Tax Assets /

(Liabilities)

At 31st March, 2020 (944.06) 804.53 56.90 7.16 (75.47)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss 33.67 (43.03) 41.56 2.60 34.80
- to other comprehensive income - - - (1.07) (1.07)

At 31st March, 2021 (910.39) 761.50 98.46 8.69 (41.74)
(Charged) / Credited:
- to profit or loss (21.26) 22.09 - 2.22 3.05
- to other comprehensive income - - - (3.16) (3.16)

At 31st March, 2022 (931.65) 783.59 98.46 7.75 (41.84)

8 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)
30.95 19.57

30.95 19.57

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Deferred tax for temporary differences attributable to

Income Tax Receivable (Net of provision of Rs.Nil  As at 31st March, 2021 - Rs. 13.79 Lakhs)
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As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

5.56 37.62

5.56 37.62

As at March,2022
Particulars (Rs. in Lakh)

(i)    Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good - - 5.56 - 5.56
(ii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables – considered doubtful - - - -
(iii)  Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful - - - - -
Total - - 5.56 - 5.56

As at March,2021
Particulars (Rs. in Lakh)

(i)    0.10 33.89 3.63 - 37.62
(ii)   - - - - -
(iii) - - - - -
(iv) - - - - -
Total 0.10 33.89 3.63 - 37.62

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand 16.42 12.80
Balance with bank in current accounts 151.86 34.78

Total cash and cash equivalents 168.28 47.58

11 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
                      Fixed Deposit with bank having maturity of less than 12 months* 1.82 -
                       Interest accrued but not due on above 0.04 -

1.86 -

12 LOANS
(Unsecured, Considered Good )

Loans to related party:
Loans and advances (in the nature of Loans) to related parties* 1,393.78 512.92
Loans and Advances to Employees 0.26 0.81

1,394.04 513.73
*(For details - Refer Note  39)

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Receivable against sale of asset 306.95 306.95
Amount Receivable from Related party* 35.55 -

Other Receivables 11.14 9.39

353.64 316.34
*(For details - Refer Note  39)

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Rent 60.00 -
Prepaid Expenses 4.85 1.92
Prepaid Insurance 1.40 3.70

66.25 5.62

15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

2,00,00,000 (31st March, 2021 - 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of  Rs. 10 each 2,000.00 2,000.00
2,000.00 2,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

1,76,00,000 (31st March, 2021 - 1,76,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 1,760.00 1,760.00

1,760.00 1,760.00

(A) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Number
At the beginning of the year 176,00,000 1,760.00 1,760.00 176,00,000.00
Changes during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 176,00,000 1,760.00 1,760.00 176,00,000.00

As at 31st March, 2022

Trade Receivables

As at 31st March, 2021

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
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As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

(B) Terms, Rights and Preferences attached to Equity shares:

 (C) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 Number of shares  Number of shares % of holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid :
Vinay Dharamchand Jain 60,78,122 60,78,122 34.53
Raina Vinay Jain 51,77,051 51,77,051 29.42
Sam Financial Services Private Limited 16,04,649 16,04,649 9.12
Badri Baldawa 10,84,995 10,84,995 6.16

(D) Details of Share held by Promoters

Name of shareholder  Number of shares  Percentage (%) total
shares

 Percentage (%)
change during the

year
Vinay Dharamchand Jain 60,78,122 34.53 No change
Raina Vinay Jain 51,77,051 29.42 No change
Dharamchand shah 24,000 0.14 No change
Bhimaladevi  Shah 24,000 0.14 No change

16 OTHER EQUITY

General reserve 200.00 200.00
Capital reserves on consolidation 152.44 152.44
Retained earnings 1,033.56 992.72
Other comprehensive income 75.92 66.94

1,461.92 1,412.10
Nature & purpose of other equity and reserves :

17 BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)
SECURED

Term Loans
       Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 363.38 383.62
       ICICI Bank 5.28 -
       ICICI Bank 10.20 -
ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans from

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC) 43.87 66.78

Kotak Bank 18.83 37.16

HDFC Bank 17.43 30.13

Vehicle Loans from Banks and NBFCS
     (Secured by way of hypothecation of motor vehicles purchased there against)
       Kotak Mahindra Bank - 24.63
       HDFC Bank 34.93 103.91
       Daimler Financial Services India Pvt. Ltd. 2.94 12.13

496.86 658.36

Rate of Interest, Details of Security and Term of Repayment of Term Loans :

 Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)

ICICI Bank Ltd:

Rate of Interest ,Details of Term of Repayment of ECLGS (Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme) Loans

Kotak Bank

HDFC Bank

As at 31st March, 2022
% of holding

34.53
29.42

9.12

Carries interest at 12.50% p.a.(Previous Year 12.50% p.a.). The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company and personally
guaranteed by the Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from January, 2020 and ending on September, 2030.

As at 31 March, 2022

General Reserve: General Reserves are created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the company, they don’t have any special purpose to
fulfill and can be used for any purpose in future.

As at 31st March, 2021

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The shareholders have the right to receive interim dividends declared by the Board of Directors and Final dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders will be entitled in proportion to the number of equity shares held by them receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. However, presently there are no such preferential amounts.

The shareholders have all other rights as available to equity shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, as applicable.

Carries interest at 7.92% p.a. (Previous Year 7.92% p.a.) The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from
August, 2020 and ending on July, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

6.16

Aditya birla finance limited (Non-banking financial institution-NBFC)
Carries interest at 13% p.a. (Previous Year 13% p.a.) The ECLGS loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Associates Company. The loan is repayable in 4
monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from October, 2020 and ending on September, 2024.

Capital Reserve on Consolidation : Capital reserve is created out of capital profits and is usually not distributed as dividend to shareholders.

Carries interest at 8.25% p.a.(Previous Year 8.25% p.a.) The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments (including 12 months principal moratorium period) commencing from July,
2020 and ending on June, 2024. Existing Securities of vehicle loans extended to this loan.

1) Carries interest at 8.50% (Previous Year NIL) p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable property of Directors and personally guaranteed by the
Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from December, 2021 and ending on November, 2031.

2) Carries interest at 8.50% (Previous Year NIL) p.a.. The Term loan is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable property of Directors and personally  guaranteed by the
Directors. The loan is repayable in 120 monthly installments commencing from December, 2021 and ending on November, 2031.
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As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

 Vehicle Loans

Repayable by Rate of Interest Bank Name

September 20th, 2022 8.41%  Kotak Bank - 13.53
June 20th, 2022 and May 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank - 6.77
June 20th, 2022 and April 20th, 2022 8.76%  Kotak Bank - 4.33
September 5th, 2023 9.67%  HDFC Bank 34.93 103.91

 January, 2023
7.50%  Daimler Financial Services

India Pvt. Ltd. 2.94 12.13
37.87 140.67

18 LEASE LIABLITIES (Non - Current)

Lease Obligations*
    Lease Liabilities 2,790.31 2,594.43
     Less: Rent Paid (231.52) -

2,558.79 2,594.43
*(For details - Refer Note 37 below)

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Security Deposits from Employees 51.57 62.09

51.57 62.09

20 PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Provision for employee benefits

                   Gratuity 25.65 32.47

                              25.65                                          32.47

21 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)
(Unsecued, Repayable on damand)

 Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* 176.48 -
Loan from related party* 0.61 -
Loan from bodies corporate** 35.57 35.58
 Overdraft from Bank*** 80.88 252.92

293.54 288.50
   *(For details of Securities- Refer Note 17 herein above)
    **(Navnidhi Commerce Private Limited Rate of interest - Nil., Previous year - 12% p.a. and
       Samriddhi Finserve India Private Limited Rate of interest - Nil p.a., Previous year - 12%)
  ***(The Overdraft facility is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Immovable properties of Director.Rate of interest 8.5% p.a, Previous year 11.25% p.a.)

22 LEASE LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

 Lease Liabilities* 2.43 55.97

*(For details - Refer Note 39 below) 2.43 55.97

23 TRADE PAYABLES

      Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
      Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 114.97 224.78

114.97 224.78

    - - - -
   20.41 59.07 0.23 35.26 114.97

 - - - - -
 - - - - -

20.41 59.07 0.23 35.26 114.97

As at 31 March, 2021

    - - - -
   42.72 146.80 35.26 224.78

 - - - - -
 - - - - -

42.72 146.80 35.26 - 224.78

24 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings* - 239.75
 Interest Accrued but not Due 3.70 4.69
 Payables to a Related Party ** 21.39 214.44
 Due to Employees 61.46 183.59

86.55 642.47

**(For details - Refer Note 39)

As at 31 March, 2022

*(For details of Securities- Refer Note 17 herein above)
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As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022

(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

25 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues 108.51 193.54
 Payables to a Related Party* 324.68 566.55
 Advance given to party - 15.00
Contract Liability**(Fees Received in advance) 1,239.62 1,112.98

1,672.81 1,888.06
*(For details - Refer Note39)
**(For details - Refer Note 37)

26 PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
           Provision for employee benefits
                       Gratuity 4.16 0.95

4.16 0.95

27 CURRENT TAX LAIBILITY (NET)

Provision For Tax - 6.88
Less: Tax payments - -

- 6.88
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33 Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax positions.

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
          Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (19.57) -

          Deferred Tax (3.05) (34.81)

         Total tax expense (22.62) (34.81)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit/ (Loss) before income tax expense 19.81 (533.75)

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses on profit/ (Loss) before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) 5.15 (138.77)

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)
       Permanent Disallowances                                                                   3.16                                                     2.33

       Short provision for taxation of                                                               (19.57)                                                         -

       Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses (48.82)                                                 101.37

       Others                                                                 37.46                                                     0.27

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (22.62) (34.81)

Effective tax rate -114.18% 6.52%

34 Employee benefit obligations

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 4.16 25.65 0.95 32.47

Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

 Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets  Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

Present value of obligation  Fair value of plan assets  Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

As at the beginning of the year 33.43 - 33.43 27.55 - 27.55

Current service cost 6.27 - 6.27 8.13 - 8.13
Interest expense 2.24 - 2.24 1.87 - 1.87
Total amount recognized in profit
or loss

8.51 - 8.51 10.00 - 10.00

Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in
assumptions

(1.65) - (1.65) 0.21 - 0.21

Experience gains (10.48) - (10.48) (4.33) - (4.33)
Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income

(12.13) - (12.13) (4.12) - (4.12)

As at end of the year 29.81 - 29.81 33.43 - 33.43

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Change in assumption by
 Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption  Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption

Discount rate 28.13 31.66 31.44 35.62
Salary growth rate 31.63 28.17 35.54 31.51

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2022 as follows (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars
Year 1 4.16
Year 2 1.09
Year 3 1.18
Year 4 1.22
Year 5 1.17
Thereafter 11.17

35

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

6.80%
5.00%

A)During the year the business of the Company/Group was significantly impacted by the continuous delay in re-opening of schools amid Covid-19 lockdown restrictions. The Management is continuously monitoring the situation and expects an improvement in the business going forward
considering the pace of vaccine, reduction in the number of cases and opening up of schools. However, two entry level grades i.e. Play Group and Nursery were not possible to function smoothly on online platforms during the year. Therefore, was not be possible to collect fees for these two
grades for the academic year 2021-22. Besides, the transport/utility facility income is affected badly during this pandemic time Management has not recognized income from both entry level grades and transport/utility facility, resulting in revenue being significantly reduced.

0.50%

5.00%

0.50%

29.81
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time
based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 Particulars

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.47 years.

7.25%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

B)The Company/Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from the date of quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 and has concluded that there are major impact on liquidity due to collections are reduced substantially for the current
academic year 2021-22 and the same adjustments are recorded in the standalone/consolidated financial statements. Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events till the date of approval of its financial statements arising from COVID-19 pandemi
in the preparation of the stand-alone/ consolidated financial statements.The Company/Group will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

33.43
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Particulars
Total for the year ended March, 2022 Total for the year ended March, 2021

I. Income: 49.3 -

Excess provision for expenses
written back 84.96 -

Gain on Rent Concession -

II. Expenditure: 21.01 -

Discount given in tuition fees 113.25 -

Net Impect - Income / (Expenses)

268.52                                                                                -

36 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
Disputed Income Tax matters 181.63 81.02

Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35 25,017.35

37 Leases

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Opening balance 2,650.40 2,640.42

Additions during the year - -

Interest accrued during the year 319.27 316.72

Deletions (97.64) -
Lease liability written back on rent concession (307.98) (208.86)

Lease payments (2.83) (97.88)

Closing Balance 2,561.21 2,650.40
Out of above:
      Current Lease Liabilities 2.43 55.97

      Non Current Lease Liabilities 2,558.79 2,594.43

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Not later than one year 191.40 191.40

Later than one year and not later than five years 932.40 881.70

Later than five years 7,362.20 7,604.30
Total 8,486.00 8,677.40

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
0.60 -

0.60 -

38  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (Rs. in lakhs) (A)                                                        40.84                                         (498.59)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)                                               176,00,000                                   176,00,000
Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) (A/B)                                                          0.23                                             (2.83)
Face value of equity shares                                                             10                                                 10

39 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A. List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management)

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists

Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

b. Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)
VJTF Constructions Private Limited
Witty Education Private Limited
Witty Enterprises Private Limited
Witty Infratech Private Limited
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust
Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. Vinay Jain, Director
Dr. Raina Jain, Director

Earnings per share

*Note: Include demand of Rs.38.60 Lakh for the assessment year 2017-18 order dated 20 th December , 2019 , Rs.42.42 Lakh for the assessment year 2018-19 vide order dated  24th May, 2021. Rs.100.61 Lakh for the assessment year 2019-20  vide order dated 10th May, 2020.

The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions, wherever required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements.

(i) Carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

(ii) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:

 C) The Following impacts arising out of "covid" relating to previous year have been crystallized and accounted as under (Rs. In Lacs):

(iii) Rental expenses for short-term leases recognised in statement of profit and loss
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B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

I. Transactions during the year (Rs. in lakhs)

Associate / Others Key Management Personnel Associate / Others Key Management Personnel

Operational and Management Fees income

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2.00 - 2.00 -

Income Collected on our behalf by

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 7.98 - 0.80 -

Witty Education Private limited 5.84 - - -
Witty Global Education Trust 0.10

Interest Expenses
Lease Rent Expenses
Dr.Raina Jain - 2.40 - 2.40

Director's Remuneration Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain - 60.00 - 60.00
Dr.Raina Jain - 60.00 - 60.00

Reimbersment of Expenses given

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 8.51 - 15.34 -

Witty Global Education Trust 4.49 8.94
Witty Education Private limited 1.46 - 7.03 -

Loans Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 880.86 - 5.68 -

Loans Given Received Back
Operation & Managment Deposits Received Back

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 1,400.14 - - -

Lease Deposit Received Back
Witty Global Education Trust 449.19 - - -

Other Receivable- Repaid
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - 0.06 -

Payments made on behalf of:
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09

Payments made on behalf of - received back:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09 -

Payments received on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2,666.94 - 1,613.16 -

Witty Education Private Limited 112.29 - 352.97 -
Witty Global Education Trust 981.93 - 33.04 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 0.19 - 10.00 -

Payments received on behalf of - repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2,855.57 - 1,517.84 -

Witty Education Private Limited 112.29 - 970.70 -
Witty Global Education Trust 986.35 - 28.63 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 242.05 - 8.32 -

Security cum Guarantee Taken (Amount reduced)

Security cum Guarantee Given
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited - - 1,100.00 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited - - 1,000.00 -

Dr Raina Jain - - - 500.00

Unsecured Loan from director

Dr Raina Jain - 0.61

Rent Paid
Witty Global Education Trust 15.90
Dr Raina Jain 7.50

Amount Recoverable

Witty Global Education Trust 35.55

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022Particulars YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
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II. Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in lakhs)

Associate/ Others Key Management Personnel Associate/Others Key Management Personnel

Loan Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 1,393.78 - 512.92 -

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust - - 479.19 -
Dr.Raina Jain - 411.17 - 411.17

Operation & Managment Deposits

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 1,400.14 -

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 3,215.61 3,215.61

Investment in Shares of an subsidiary and associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 482.25 - 482.25 -

Unsecured Loan Taken

Dr.Raina Jain 0.61

Rent Payables
Witty Global Education Trust - - 15.90 -
Dr.Raina Jain - 1.00 - 5.66

Loans Taken
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited - - 566.55 -

Other Current Liability
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 324.68 - - -

Payable to associates
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 21.39 - 210.03 -

Witty Education Private Limited - - - -
Witty Global Education Trust - - 4.41

Director's Remuneration Payable

Dr.Vinay Jain - 4.63 - 29.42
Dr.Raina Jain - 4.07 - 38.96

Security cum Guarantee taken
VJTF Construction Private Limited 400.00 - 400.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain

- 400.00 - 400.00

Security cum Guarantee Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 10,357.35 - 10,357.35 -

VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 3,060.00 - 3,060.00 -

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 -
Dr Raina Jain - 500.00 - 500.00

Amount Recoverable

Witty Global Education Trust 35.55 - -

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .
2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.
3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

40 Disclosure as per requirement of regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

A Loans and advances (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Outstanding Balances as at the year end Maximum Amount Outstanding
During the year

1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 512.92
Total 1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 512.92

B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposits (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 3,215.61 3,215.61 3,215.61 3,215.61
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust - 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14
Witty Global Education Trust - 479.19 479.19 479.19
Dr. Raina Jain 411.17 411.17 411.17 411.17
Total 3,626.78 5,506.11 5,506.11 5,506.11

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited

YEAR ENDED 31 st MARCH, 2022

Name of the Party

YEAR ENDED 31 st MARCH, 2021

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022Particulars

Name of the Party

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
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41 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

42 Fair value measurements and accoutning classification

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Financial assets carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)
Non-Current
Other Financial Assets 3,598.64 5,274.14
Other Investments - 0.92
Current
Trade Receivables 5.56 37.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 168.28 12.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.86 34.78
Loans 1,394.04 513.73
Other Financial Assets 353.64 316.34

5,522.03 6,190.33
Financial liabilities carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)
Non-Current
Borrowings 496.86 658.36
Lease Liability 2,558.79 2,594.43
Other Financial Liabilities 51.57 62.09
Current
Borrowings 293.54 288.50
Trade Payables 114.97 224.78
Lease Liability 2.43 55.97
Other Financial Liabilities 86.55 642.47

3,604.71 4,526.60

43 Financial Risk Management

(A) Credit Risk

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2022

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings
Term Loans 8.74 8.23 14.33 32.26 353.65 417.21
ECLGS 13.74 12.96 26.01 59.26 20.87 132.84
Vehicle Loans 36.72 20.42 35.32 34.93 - 127.39
Loan from bodies corporate - - 35.57 - - 35.57
Overdraft from bank - - 80.88 - - 80.88
Trade payables 20.41 - 59.07 0.23 35.26 114.97
Security deposits - - - - 51.57 51.57
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings

3.70 - - - - 3.70

Lease Liabilites - - 2.43 - 2,558.79 2,561.22
Payable to a Related Party - - 21.39 - - 21.39

Other payables 61.46 - - - - 61.46
Total non-derivative liabilities 144.76 41.62 274.99 126.68 3,020.14 3,608.20

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficientcash and marketable securities and the availabilityof funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company’s treasury maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances
along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account the liquidity of the market in which
the Company operates.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments
with different characteristics.

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Macroeconomic
information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract.
This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit
loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision considered.( Ageing of Account receivables -Refer Note -9)

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hiearchy is not applicable.

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team
under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company’s treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition,
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probabilityof default upon initial recognitionof asset and whether there has been a significantincrease in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company
compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,
i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.
iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

Refer note 4 and 39 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2021

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings
Term Loans 4.84 4.99 10.47 23.89 359.73 403.93
ECLGS 5.82 12.27 31.72 52.45 81.62 183.88
Vehicle Loans 47.35 47.13 75.14 102.80 37.87 310.29
Loan from Body Corporate - - 35.58 - - 35.58
Overdraft from bank - - 252.92 - - 252.92
Trade payables 42.72 - 146.80 35.26 - 224.78
Security deposits - - - - 62.09 62.09
Interest accrued but not due on 4.69 - - - - 4.69
Lease Liablities - - 55.97 - 2,594.43 2,650.40

Payable to a Related Party - - 214.44 - - 214.44
Other payables 115.21 68.38 - - - 183.59
Total non-derivative liabilities 220.63 132.77 823.04 214.40 3,135.74 4,526.59

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

2021-22

Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC

(4.97)

2020-21

Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC (6.58)

44 Capital management

 (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,

2021

                                                     798.60                                       1,139.04

Total equity 3,787.43 3,735.99
Net debt to equity ratio 21.09% 30.49%
Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

45

A
 (Rs. in lakhs)

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

Contracted price 1,118.57 557.64
(370.89) (56.74)
747.68 500.90

B

C  (Rs. in lakhs)
 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,

2021

1,049.75 1,098.08
(1,112.98) (1,098.08)
1,302.86 1,112.98
1,239.63 1,112.98

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

Revenue from contracts with customers

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under Ind AS 116)

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :
1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

For details of the Company’s current and non current loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note 16 and 20 of these financial statements.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group is expected the interest rate fluctuations over next 12 months. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in the interest rates with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis is prepared as at the reporting date.

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations, along with the broad time band for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in
Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time based
and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs.1112.98 lakhs, which is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next year.

Balance at the beginning of the year

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company’s treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet date, the Company does not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign
exchange risk.

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

Revenue recognised

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year
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46

47

48 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

49

50 The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

51 The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

52

53 The Group is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

54 The Group is not involved in any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

55

56

57

58

59

60 The Group has not traded or invested in any Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

61

62

63 Interest in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

82.42% 82.42%

(b) Associate

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

46.03% 46.03%VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (formerly VJTF
Infrastructure Private Limited)

The Group does not have any such transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Name of entity

India

Name of entity

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period except for registration of charge for availing an overdraft facility, during the year, secured against property of Directors.

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The
management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

India

Place of business/ country of incorporation Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Ownership interest held by the group (%)Place of business/ country of incorporation

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

CSR Expenditure include expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof: Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh).
Gross amount required to be spent as per aforesaid provision is Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh)

The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendments.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards / amendments under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.:

Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment – The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property
plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the
Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz., ‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets – The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (exampl
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022, although early adoption is permitted.

Ind AS 103 | Business combinations – The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and contingent liabilities

Legal Disputes with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) related to Mumbai and Udaipur School properties are sub judice with Hon’ble Bombay High Court. The Group has made detailed assessment of its impact on loans given of Rs. 1394 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 513
Lacs), guarantee given of Rs. 13417 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 13417 Lacs ) and investment made of Rs. 482 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 482 Lacs)and based on the advice given by external legal counsel, no provision/adjustmenthas been considered necessary by the management with respect
to the above matters in these standalone/consolidated annual financial results, considering the uncertainty relating to the outcome of the matters .

In view of the above, financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 of VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited, an associate, are not available. This has no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group, as the carrying value of the investments in the associate is Nil (due to
accounting of share of loss of an associate to the extent of investment value).

Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments – The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees pa
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group.

The Holding Company (Artheon Finance Limited) was registered as Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFC) under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1034 vide Registration No. 13.00998 dated 5th September, 1998 as  non-accepting deposit NBFC. The Holding Company had never accepted
any deposits from the public during its tenure of business of NBFC.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 5th March, 2013 decided not to carry any activity which falls under the criteria of NBFC for which registration with RBI is required. The Management decided to venture in to the education sector and merged Vinay Jain’s Training Forum Pvt.
Ltd. with itself (appointed date being 1st April, 2011). The Holding Company vide letter dated 30.05.2013 had submitted to the Department of Non- Banking Supervision, Mumbai Regional Office, Reserve Bank of India an application for voluntary surrender of Certificate of Registration no.
13.00998 held as in the name of Artheon Finance Company. Subsequently, the company vide its letter dated 4th February, 2019 has surrendered Original Certificate of Registration as NBFC to The Department of Non-Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India.

As the Holding Company is not falling under NBFC category, the Holding Company has not furnished any statements with RBI for the same. The Holding Company is regularly following up with RBI towards cancellation of the NBFC licence for which their confirmation / approval is still
awaited.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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64

As % of Consolidated net assets Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

As % of Consolidated
profit/(loss) after tax

Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

36.09% 1366.71 78.67%                                                        33.38

84.93% 3216.674 21.33% 9.05

(c) Non-controlling interest 14.93%                                                  565.48 3.75%                                                          1.59

(d) Consolidation elimination -35.95%                                             (1,361.43) -3.75%                                                        (1.59)
Total 100.00% 3,787.43 100.00%                                                        42.43

35.45% 1324.35 99.58%                                                    (496.86)

74.16% 2770.58 0.41% -2.07

(c) Non-controlling interest 15.09%                                                  563.89 0.07%                                                        (0.36)

(d) Consolidation elimination -24.70%                                                (922.83) -0.07%                                                          0.35

Total 100.00%                                               3,735.99 100.00%                                                    (498.94)

65 Previous year figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.: 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No.00235276 DIN No.01142103
MILIND SHAH
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  :  30th May 2022

(b) Subsidiary - Indian
VJTF BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2021

Name of the Enterprises

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2022

(b) Subsidiary - Indian
VJTF BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

Share in Profit/(loss)
after Taxation and before other comprehensive incomeNet Assets i.e. Total assets minus Total liabilities

Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates.
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33 Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates made in relation to the Company’s tax positions.

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
          Prior Period Taxation Adjustments (19.57) -

          Deferred Tax (3.05) (34.81)

         Total tax expense (22.62) (34.81)

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Profit/ (Loss) before income tax expense 19.81 (533.75)

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 26.00% 26.00%

Tax expenses on profit/ (Loss) before tax at the enacted income tax rate (A) 5.15 (138.77)

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income (B)
       Permanent Disallowances                                                                   3.16                                                     2.33

       Short provision for taxation of                                                               (19.57)                                                         -

       Deferred tax asset not recognised on unabsorbed losses (48.82)                                                 101.37

       Others                                                                 37.46                                                     0.27

Current tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) (22.62) (34.81)

Effective tax rate -114.18% 6.52%

34 Employee benefit obligations

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 4.16 25.65 0.95 32.47

Total

Gratuity (Post-employment obligations)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

 Present value of obligation Fair value of plan assets  Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

Present value of obligation  Fair value of plan assets  Net amount
(UNFUNDED)

As at the beginning of the year 33.43 - 33.43 27.55 - 27.55

Current service cost 6.27 - 6.27 8.13 - 8.13
Interest expense 2.24 - 2.24 1.87 - 1.87
Total amount recognized in profit
or loss

8.51 - 8.51 10.00 - 10.00

Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in
assumptions

(1.65) - (1.65) 0.21 - 0.21

Experience gains (10.48) - (10.48) (4.33) - (4.33)
Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income

(12.13) - (12.13) (4.12) - (4.12)

As at end of the year 29.81 - 29.81 33.43 - 33.43

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities with respect to key assumptions (Rs. in lakh)

Particulars Change in assumption by
 Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption  Increase in assumption  Decrease in assumption

Discount rate 28.13 31.66 31.44 35.62
Salary growth rate 31.63 28.17 35.54 31.51

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end 31st March, 2022 as follows (Rs. in lakh)
Particulars
Year 1 4.16
Year 2 1.09
Year 3 1.18
Year 4 1.22
Year 5 1.17
Thereafter 11.17

35

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

6.80%
5.00%

A)During the year the business of the Company/Group was significantly impacted by the continuous delay in re-opening of schools amid Covid-19 lockdown restrictions. The Management is continuously monitoring the situation and expects an improvement in the business going forward
considering the pace of vaccine, reduction in the number of cases and opening up of schools. However, two entry level grades i.e. Play Group and Nursery were not possible to function smoothly on online platforms during the year. Therefore, was not be possible to collect fees for these two
grades for the academic year 2021-22. Besides, the transport/utility facility income is affected badly during this pandemic time Management has not recognized income from both entry level grades and transport/utility facility, resulting in revenue being significantly reduced.

0.50%

5.00%

0.50%

29.81

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH , 2022
(CIN No. L80301MH1984PLC033922)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The Company provides for gratuity as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The Company does not fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time
based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date using Projected Unit Credit method.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 Particulars

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

The average outstanding term of the obligations (Years) as at valuation date is 13.47 years.

7.25%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

AS AT 31st MARCH, 2022

B)The Company/Group has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from the date of quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 and has concluded that there are major impact on liquidity due to collections are reduced substantially for the current
academic year 2021-22 and the same adjustments are recorded in the standalone/consolidated financial statements. Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events till the date of approval of its financial statements arising from COVID-19 pandemi
in the preparation of the stand-alone/ consolidated financial statements.The Company/Group will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

33.43
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Particulars
Total for the year ended March, 2022 Total for the year ended March, 2021

I. Income: 49.3 -

Excess provision for expenses
written back 84.96 -

Gain on Rent Concession -

II. Expenditure: 21.01 -

Discount given in tuition fees 113.25 -

Net Impect - Income / (Expenses)

268.52                                                                                -

36 Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in lakh) (Rs. in lakh)
Disputed Income Tax matters 181.63 81.02

Corporate Guarantees/Securities given 25,017.35 25,017.35

37 Leases

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Opening balance 2,650.40 2,640.42

Additions during the year - -

Interest accrued during the year 319.27 316.72

Deletions (97.64) -
Lease liability written back on rent concession (307.98) (208.86)

Lease payments (2.83) (97.88)

Closing Balance 2,561.21 2,650.40
Out of above:
      Current Lease Liabilities 2.43 55.97

      Non Current Lease Liabilities 2,558.79 2,594.43

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)

Not later than one year 191.40 191.40

Later than one year and not later than five years 932.40 881.70

Later than five years 7,362.20 7,604.30
Total 8,486.00 8,677.40

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
0.60 -

0.60 -

38  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2022

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH, 2021

Profit/ (Loss) for the year (Rs. in lakhs) (A)                                                        40.84                                         (498.59)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B)                                               176,00,000                                   176,00,000
Basic & Diluted EPS (Rs. ) (A/B)                                                          0.23                                             (2.83)
Face value of equity shares                                                             10                                                 10

39 Related Party Disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A. List of Related Parties (As identified by the Management)

a.  Enterprise where Control Exists

Associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (Formerly VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited)

b. Others (Enterprises where significant influence exercised by Key Managerial Personnel)
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited (Formerly Rishi Reality Leasing Services Private Limited)
VJTF Constructions Private Limited
Witty Education Private Limited
Witty Enterprises Private Limited
Witty Infratech Private Limited
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust
Witty Global Education Trust

c.   Key Managerial personnel and relatives
Dr. Vinay Jain, Director
Dr. Raina Jain, Director

Earnings per share

*Note: Include demand of Rs.38.60 Lakh for the assessment year 2017-18 order dated 20 th December , 2019 , Rs.42.42 Lakh for the assessment year 2018-19 vide order dated  24th May, 2021. Rs.100.61 Lakh for the assessment year 2019-20  vide order dated 10th May, 2020.

The Company reviews all its litigations and proceedings and makes adequate provisions, wherever required and discloses the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements.

(i) Carrying value of lease liabilities and the movement during the period:

(ii) Break-up of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 on an undiscounted basis:

 C) The Following impacts arising out of "covid" relating to previous year have been crystallized and accounted as under (Rs. In Lacs):

(iii) Rental expenses for short-term leases recognised in statement of profit and loss
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B. Transactions during the year (at arm’s length) and balances outstanding as at the year end with related parties are as follows:

I. Transactions during the year (Rs. in lakhs)

Associate / Others Key Management Personnel Associate / Others Key Management Personnel

Operational and Management Fees income

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2.00 - 2.00 -

Income Collected on our behalf by

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 7.98 - 0.80 -

Witty Education Private limited 5.84 - - -
Witty Global Education Trust 0.10

Interest Expenses
Lease Rent Expenses
Dr.Raina Jain - 2.40 - 2.40

Director's Remuneration Expenses

Dr.Vinay Jain - 60.00 - 60.00
Dr.Raina Jain - 60.00 - 60.00

Reimbersment of Expenses given

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 8.51 - 15.34 -

Witty Global Education Trust 4.49 8.94
Witty Education Private limited 1.46 - 7.03 -

Loans Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 880.86 - 5.68 -

Loans Given Received Back
Operation & Managment Deposits Received Back

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 1,400.14 - - -

Lease Deposit Received Back
Witty Global Education Trust 449.19 - - -

Other Receivable- Repaid
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - 0.06 -

Payments made on behalf of:
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09

Payments made on behalf of - received back:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 541.85 -

Witty Global Education Trust - - 159.28 -
Witty Education Pvt. Ltd. 50.09 -

Payments received on behalf of:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2,666.94 - 1,613.16 -

Witty Education Private Limited 112.29 - 352.97 -
Witty Global Education Trust 981.93 - 33.04 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 0.19 - 10.00 -

Payments received on behalf of - repaid:

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 2,855.57 - 1,517.84 -

Witty Education Private Limited 112.29 - 970.70 -
Witty Global Education Trust 986.35 - 28.63 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 242.05 - 8.32 -

Security cum Guarantee Taken (Amount reduced)

Security cum Guarantee Given
Witty Enterprises Private Limited - - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited - - 1,100.00 -
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited - - 1,000.00 -

Dr Raina Jain - - - 500.00

Unsecured Loan from director

Dr Raina Jain - 0.61

Rent Paid
Witty Global Education Trust 15.90
Dr Raina Jain 7.50

Amount Recoverable

Witty Global Education Trust 35.55

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022Particulars YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
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II. Outstanding balances as at the year end (Rs. in lakhs)

Associate/ Others Key Management Personnel Associate/Others Key Management Personnel

Loan Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 1,393.78 - 512.92 -

Lease Deposit Given

Witty Global Education Trust - - 479.19 -
Dr.Raina Jain - 411.17 - 411.17

Operation & Managment Deposits

Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust - - 1,400.14 -

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 3,215.61 3,215.61

Investment in Shares of an subsidiary and associate
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 482.25 - 482.25 -

Unsecured Loan Taken

Dr.Raina Jain 0.61

Rent Payables
Witty Global Education Trust - - 15.90 -
Dr.Raina Jain - 1.00 - 5.66

Loans Taken
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited - - 566.55 -

Other Current Liability
VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 324.68 - - -

Payable to associates
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable Trust 21.39 - 210.03 -

Witty Education Private Limited - - - -
Witty Global Education Trust - - 4.41

Director's Remuneration Payable

Dr.Vinay Jain - 4.63 - 29.42
Dr.Raina Jain - 4.07 - 38.96

Security cum Guarantee taken
VJTF Construction Private Limited 400.00 - 400.00 -

Dr Raina Jain
Dr Vinay Jain

- 400.00 - 400.00

Security cum Guarantee Given
VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited 10,357.35 - 10,357.35 -

VJTF Infraschool Services (Udaipur) Private Limited 3,060.00 - 3,060.00 -

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 -

Witty Infratech Private Limited 1,100.00 - 1,100.00 -
Dr Raina Jain - 500.00 - 500.00

Amount Recoverable

Witty Global Education Trust 35.55 - -

1. Above disclosed amounts represent transaction values only, without considering the impact of  GST and IND AS .
2. No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off / back or provided for.
3. Related party relationship have been identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.

40 Disclosure as per requirement of regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

A Loans and advances (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Outstanding Balances as at the year end Maximum Amount Outstanding
During the year

1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 512.92
Total 1,393.78 1,393.78 512.92 512.92

B Premises Lease Deposit and Operation and Management Deposits (Rs. in lakhs)

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Outstanding Balances as at the year
end

Maximum Amount
Outstanding During the year

Witty Enterprises Private Limited 3,215.61 3,215.61 3,215.61 3,215.61
Pratiksha Foundation Charitable trust - 1,400.14 1,400.14 1,400.14
Witty Global Education Trust - 479.19 479.19 479.19
Dr. Raina Jain 411.17 411.17 411.17 411.17
Total 3,626.78 5,506.11 5,506.11 5,506.11

VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited

YEAR ENDED 31 st MARCH, 2022

Name of the Party

YEAR ENDED 31 st MARCH, 2021

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022Particulars

Name of the Party

YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
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41 Disclosure as required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013:

42 Fair value measurements and accoutning classification

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Financial assets carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)
Non-Current
Other Financial Assets 3,598.64 5,274.14
Other Investments - 0.92
Current
Trade Receivables 5.56 37.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 168.28 12.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.86 34.78
Loans 1,394.04 513.73
Other Financial Assets 353.64 316.34

5,522.03 6,190.33
Financial liabilities carried at amortisaed cost (Carrying amount)
Non-Current
Borrowings 496.86 658.36
Lease Liability 2,558.79 2,594.43
Other Financial Liabilities 51.57 62.09
Current
Borrowings 293.54 288.50
Trade Payables 114.97 224.78
Lease Liability 2.43 55.97
Other Financial Liabilities 86.55 642.47

3,604.71 4,526.60

43 Financial Risk Management

(A) Credit Risk

(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2022

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings
Term Loans 8.74 8.23 14.33 32.26 353.65 417.21
ECLGS 13.74 12.96 26.01 59.26 20.87 132.84
Vehicle Loans 36.72 20.42 35.32 34.93 - 127.39
Loan from bodies corporate - - 35.57 - - 35.57
Overdraft from bank - - 80.88 - - 80.88
Trade payables 20.41 - 59.07 0.23 35.26 114.97
Security deposits - - - - 51.57 51.57
Interest accrued but not due on
borrowings

3.70 - - - - 3.70

Lease Liabilites - - 2.43 - 2,558.79 2,561.22
Payable to a Related Party - - 21.39 - - 21.39

Other payables 61.46 - - - - 61.46
Total non-derivative liabilities 144.76 41.62 274.99 126.68 3,020.14 3,608.20

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficientcash and marketable securities and the availabilityof funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company’s treasury maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances
along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary to take into account the liquidity of the market in which
the Company operates.

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

Amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal control and credit management system. Internal credit control and management is performed on a Company basis for each class of financial instruments
with different characteristics.

The company considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Macroeconomic
information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) are also considered as part of the internal credit management system. A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make payments as per contract.
This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit
loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional provision considered.( Ageing of Account receivables -Refer Note -9)

Credit risk is managed at segment as well as Company level. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

The following tables shows the carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities. In all cases of financial assets and liabilities, carrying amount (amortised cost) is a reasonable estimate of fair value, therefore, defining levels of fair value hiearchy is not applicable.

The Company’s activities expose it to business risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance, the Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team
under policies approved by the board of directors and top management. Company’s treasury identifies, evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board provides guidance for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition,
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probabilityof default upon initial recognitionof asset and whether there has been a significantincrease in credit risk on an ongoing basis through out each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company
compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,
i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

iv) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the third-party guarantees or credit enhancements.
iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations,

Refer note 4 and 39 above with respect to Loans, Guarantees and Securities given as well as investments made – for business purpose.
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities
As at 31st March, 2021

Less than
3 months

3 months
to 6 months

6 months
to 1 year

Between
1 and 2 years

More than 2 years Total

Non-derivatives
Borrowings
Term Loans 4.84 4.99 10.47 23.89 359.73 403.93
ECLGS 5.82 12.27 31.72 52.45 81.62 183.88
Vehicle Loans 47.35 47.13 75.14 102.80 37.87 310.29
Loan from Body Corporate - - 35.58 - - 35.58
Overdraft from bank - - 252.92 - - 252.92
Trade payables 42.72 - 146.80 35.26 - 224.78
Security deposits - - - - 62.09 62.09
Interest accrued but not due on 4.69 - - - - 4.69
Lease Liablities - - 55.97 - 2,594.43 2,650.40

Payable to a Related Party - - 214.44 - - 214.44
Other payables 115.21 68.38 - - - 183.59
Total non-derivative liabilities 220.63 132.77 823.04 214.40 3,135.74 4,526.59

(C) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

(ii) Interest rate risk

31-Mar-22

Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC

(4.97)

31-Mar-21

Interest on term loan from bank and NBFC (6.58)

44 Capital management

 (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,

2021

                                                     798.60                                       1,139.04

Total equity 3,787.43 3,735.99
Net debt to equity ratio 21.09% 30.49%
Loan covenants : The company intends to manage optimal gearing ratios.

45

A
 (Rs. in lakhs)

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

Contracted price 1,118.57 557.64
(370.89) (56.74)
747.68 500.90

B

C  (Rs. in lakhs)
 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,

2021

1,049.75 1,098.08
(1,112.98) (1,098.08)
1,302.86 1,112.98
1,239.63 1,112.98

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price:

Less: Returns, rebates, incentive and other similar allowances

Revenue from contracts with customers

Net debt (Total  borrowings, including current maturities less cash & cash equivalent excluding Lease Liability under Ind AS 116)

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :
1. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

For details of the Company’s current and non current loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note 16 and 20 of these financial statements.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group is expected the interest rate fluctuations over next 12 months. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in the interest rates with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis is prepared as at the reporting date.

While disclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations, along with the broad time band for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Company has applied the practical expedient in
Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations which pertain to contracts where revenue recognised corresponds to the value transferred to customer typically involving time based
and event based contracts.

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance obligations is Rs.1112.98 lakhs, which is expected to be recognised as revenue in the next year.

Balance at the beginning of the year

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company’s treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk management.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As on the balance-sheet date, the Company does not have foreign currency receivables or payables and is therefore not exposed to foreign
exchange risk.

Changes in contract liabilities (fees received in advance) are as follows:

Revenue recognised

Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Revenue recognised that was included in the balance at the beginning of the year
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46

47

48 Recent Accounting Pronouncements  - Standards issued but not yet effective

49

50 The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

51 The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

52

53 The Group is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

54 The Group is not involved in any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

55

56

57

58

59

60 The Group has not traded or invested in any Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

61

62

63 Interest in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

82.42% 82.42%

(b) Associate

 YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022  YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,
2021

46.03% 46.03%VJTF Infraschool Services (Mumbai) Private Limited (formerly VJTF
Infrastructure Private Limited)

The Group does not have any such transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Name of entity

India

Name of entity

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period except for registration of charge for availing an overdraft facility, during the year, secured against property of Directors.

There is no interest paid during the year and no principle and interest is outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as on Balance sheet date.

The accounts of certain trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and banks are, however, subject to formal confirmations or reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, there is no indication of dispute on these accounts, other than those mentioned in the financial statements. The
management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments.

India

Place of business/ country of incorporation Ownership interest held by the group (%)

Ownership interest held by the group (%)Place of business/ country of incorporation

VJTF Buildcon Private Limited

CSR Expenditure include expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof: Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh).
Gross amount required to be spent as per aforesaid provision is Rs. Nil Lakh (Previous Year Rs. Nil Lakh)

The Group is in the process of evaluating the impact of these amendments.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards / amendments under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.:

Ind AS 16 | Property, plant and equipment – The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property
plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The Company’s Directors are identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators, however the
Company is primarily engaged in only one segment viz., ‘Educational Services’ and that all operations are in India. Hence the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

Ind AS 37 | Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets – The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (exampl
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2022, although early adoption is permitted.

Ind AS 103 | Business combinations – The amendment adds a new exception in Ind AS 103 for liabilities and contingent liabilities

Legal Disputes with Cerestra Infrastructure Trust (Registered AIF with SEBI) related to Mumbai and Udaipur School properties are sub judice with Hon’ble Bombay High Court. The Group has made detailed assessment of its impact on loans given of Rs. 1394 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 513
Lacs), guarantee given of Rs. 13417 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 13417 Lacs ) and investment made of Rs. 482 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 482 Lacs)and based on the advice given by external legal counsel, no provision/adjustmenthas been considered necessary by the management with respect
to the above matters in these standalone/consolidated annual financial results, considering the uncertainty relating to the outcome of the matters .

In view of the above, financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 of VJTF Infrastructure Private Limited, an associate, are not available. This has no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group, as the carrying value of the investments in the associate is Nil (due to
accounting of share of loss of an associate to the extent of investment value).

Ind AS 109 | Financial instruments – The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10%’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees pa
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group.

The Holding Company (Artheon Finance Limited) was registered as Non-Banking Financial Institution (NBFC) under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1034 vide Registration No. 13.00998 dated 5th September, 1998 as  non-accepting deposit NBFC. The Holding Company had never accepted
any deposits from the public during its tenure of business of NBFC.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 5th March, 2013 decided not to carry any activity which falls under the criteria of NBFC for which registration with RBI is required. The Management decided to venture in to the education sector and merged Vinay Jain’s Training Forum Pvt.
Ltd. with itself (appointed date being 1st April, 2011). The Holding Company vide letter dated 30.05.2013 had submitted to the Department of Non- Banking Supervision, Mumbai Regional Office, Reserve Bank of India an application for voluntary surrender of Certificate of Registration no.
13.00998 held as in the name of Artheon Finance Company. Subsequently, the company vide its letter dated 4th February, 2019 has surrendered Original Certificate of Registration as NBFC to The Department of Non-Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India.

As the Holding Company is not falling under NBFC category, the Holding Company has not furnished any statements with RBI for the same. The Holding Company is regularly following up with RBI towards cancellation of the NBFC licence for which their confirmation / approval is still
awaited.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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64

As % of Consolidated net assets Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

As % of Consolidated
profit/(loss) after tax

Amount
(Rs. In Lakh)

36.09% 1366.71 78.67%                                                        33.38

84.93% 3216.674 21.33% 9.05

(c) Non-controlling interest 14.93%                                                  565.48 3.75%                                                          1.59

(d) Consolidation elimination -35.95%                                             (1,361.43) -3.75%                                                        (1.59)
Total 100.00% 3,787.43 100.00%                                                        42.43

35.45% 1324.35 99.58%                                                    (496.86)

74.16% 2770.58 0.41% -2.07

(c) Non-controlling interest 15.09%                                                  563.89 0.07%                                                        (0.36)

(d) Consolidation elimination -24.70%                                                (922.83) -0.07%                                                          0.35

Total 100.00%                                               3,735.99 100.00%                                                    (498.94)

65 Previous year figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with those of the current year.

AS PER OUR ATTACHED REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR  J. KALA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration No.: 118769W Sd/- Sd/-

DR. VINAY JAIN DR. RAINA JAIN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Sd/- DIN No.00235276 DIN No.01142103
MILIND SHAH
PARTNER
Membership No. 107119 Sd/- Sd/-

SHRUTI SHARMA CA MANOJ JAIN

PLACE : MUMBAI COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DATE  :  30th May 2022

(b) Subsidiary - Indian
VJTF BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2021

Name of the Enterprises

(a) Parent
VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED

As at 31st March, 2022

(b) Subsidiary - Indian
VJTF BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED

Share in Profit/(loss)
after Taxation and before other comprehensive incomeNet Assets i.e. Total assets minus Total liabilities

Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates.
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BOOK-POST

If Undelivered please return to :

VJTF EDUSERVICES LIMITED
CIN : L80301MH1984PLC033922
Witty International School Bldg,
Pawan Baug Road, Off S.V. Road,
Adjacent To Techniplex, Malad-West,
Mumbai - 400 025.
Tel.: 022-61056800 / 01 / 02 Fax: 022-61056803
Website : www.vjtf.com
e-mail : vjtfho@vjtf.com

151


